
 
2

ND
 REVISION 

City of Apopka 
Planning Commission 

Meeting Agenda 
May 08, 2018 

5:30 PM @ City Council Chambers 
 
I.     CALL TO ORDER 

 
If you wish to appear before the Planning Commission, please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak” 
card to the Recording Secretary. 
 
II.    OPENING AND INVOCATION 
 
III.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

 
1 Approve minutes of the Planning Commission regular meeting held April 10, 2018. 
 
IV.    PUBLIC HEARING: 

 
1. CHANGE OF ZONING – From “County” PD (ZIP) to “City” KPI-MU (Kelly Park Interchange Mixed Use) for 

the property owned by AHIFO-18, LLC and located West of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429, 
approximately  one-half mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road 
(Parcel ID Nos.: 12-20-27-0000-00-032; 12-20-27-0000-00-090) 

 
2. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From “County” Rural 

to “City” Residential Low Suburban (0 – 3.5 du/ac) for property owned by Lynn R. Fontaine and located at 
4353 McDonald Gley Road. (Parcel ID No. 35-20-27-0000-00-037) 

 
3. CHANGE OF ZONING – From “County” A-1 to “City” RCE-2 (Residential Country Estate) for property 

owned by Lynn R. Fontaine and located at 4353 McDonald Gley Road. (Parcel ID No. 35-20-27-0000-00-
037) 

 
4. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From Rural 

Settlement (1 du/ac) to Mixed Use Interchange (0-5 du/ac) for property owned by Kent Greer and located 
South of West Kelly Park Road, East of Round Lake Road. (Parcel ID Nos.: 14-20-27-0000-00-021; 14-20-
27-0000-00-084; 14-20-27-0000-00-005) 

 
5. CHANGE OF ZONING – From Agriculture to R-1 (Single Family Residential) for the property owned by 

Laura R. Murphy and located at 359 W. Lester Road.  (Parcel ID No. 28-20-28-0000-00-060) 
 
6. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From “County” Rural 

to “City” Residential Low Suburban (0 – 3.5 du/ac) for property owned by Janine and Richard Edmondson 
located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road. (Parcel ID No. 24-20-27-0000-00-085) 



PLANNING COMMISSION 
MAY 8, 2018 
Page 2 

 
7. CHANGE OF ZONING – From “County” A-2 to “City” R-1AA (Residential Single Family District) for property 

owned by Janine and Richard Edmondson located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road. (Parcel ID No. 24-20-
27-0000-00-085) 

 
8. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – From “County” 

Commercial (Max. 3.0 FAR) to “City” Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) for property owned by SunTrust Bank 
and located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard. (Parcel ID No. 11-21-28-0750-00-050) 

 
9. CHANGE OF ZONING – From “County” R-2 & "City" C-2 to “City” C-1 (Retail Commercial) for property 

owned by SunTrust Bank and located at 920 East Semoran Boulevard. (Parcel ID No. 11-21-28-0750-00-
050) 

 
10. VARIANCE – Approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, 

Article VII, Section 7.01.08 (H) to allow a corner lot fence closer to the property line than the required 25 
feet for the property owned by Nilsa Gonzaelz and located at 301 McCoy Village Court. 

 
11. VARIANCE – Approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, 

Article II, Section 7.01.07(A) to allow for a swimming pool to encroach within the side yard setback for the 
property owned by Lerome Antione Granger and located at 2173 Hunley Avenue. 

 
12. VARIANCE - A variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article VII, 

Section 7.01.08 (H) to allow a corner lot fence closer to the property line than the required 25 feet for the 
property owned by Priscilla Torres and Daniel Padilla located at 549 Keyhold Loop. 

 
13. VARIANCE – Approve a variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, 

Article II, Section 2.02.18 (E) to allow a corner lot house 27.9 feet from the property line, 30 feet is required 
for property owned by Christopher Wren, c/o DR Horton, Inc. and located at 1686 Spinfisher Drive. 

 
V.     SITE PLANS: 

 
1. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – CARTER ELECTRIC – Property owned by Carter Land Development, 

LLC c/o Douglas Carter and located on the southwest corner of Marshall Lake Road and Bradshaw 
Road.  (Parcel ID No.: 09-21-28-0868-04-000) 

 
2. FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – CHURCH'S CHICKEN – Property owned by CHC-845 S Orange Blossom 

Trail Apopka FL LLC and located at 845 South Orange Blossom Trail. (Parcel ID No.: 11-21-28-0206-00-
070) 

 
3. PUD MASTER PLAN - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – RACETRAC – Property owned by Zellwood 

Properties, LLC, and located on the northwest corner of Hermit Smith Road and US 441.  (Parcel ID 
No.s:  36-20-27-0000-00-024; 01-21-27-0000-00-001) 

 
VI.    OLD BUSINESS: 
 
VII.   NEW BUSINESS: 
 
VIII. ADJOURNMENT: 
 

********************************************************************************************************** 
All interested parties may appear and be heard with respect to this agenda.  Please be advised that, under state law, if you decide to appeal 
any decision made by the City Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting or hearing, you will need a record of the 
proceedings, and that, for such purpose, you may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes a 
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.   The City of Apopka does not provide a verbatim record.    
 
In accordance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), persons with disabilities needing a special accommodation to participate in any 
of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk's Office at 120 East Main Street, Apopka, FL  32703, telephone (407) 703-1704, no less 
than 48 hours prior to the proceeding. 
  



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 
2018, AT 5:30 P.M. IN THE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, APOPKA, FLORIDA. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, and John Sprinkle 
 
ABSENT: Jose Molina, Patrice Phillips, Roger Simpson, Orange County Public Schools (Non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  James Hitt, FRA-RA – Community Development Director, David Moon, AICP - 
Planning Manager, Richard Earp – City Engineer, Patrick Brackin – City Attorney, Bobby Howell - Senior 
Planner, Jean Sanchez – Planner I, and Jeanne Green – Recording Secretary. 
 
OTHERS PRESENT:  David Boers, Suzanne Kidd, Bryan Potts, David Brown, Teresa Sargeant – Apopka 
Chief, Stephen Allen, Tom Sullivan, Derek Ryan, Martha Worland, and Juan B. Lugo  
 
OPENING AND INVOCATION:  Chairperson Greene called the meeting to order and asked for a 
moment of silent prayer.  The Pledge of Allegiance followed. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to the 
regular meeting minutes of March 13, 2018, at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Motion: Tony Foster made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from the 

regular meeting held on March 13, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by John Sprinkle. 
Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, and John 
Sprinkle (4-0).  

 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any corrections or additions to the special meeting minutes of 
March 20, 2018, at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Motion: John Sprinkle made a motion to approve the Planning Commission minutes from the 

special meeting held on March 20, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. and seconded by Linda 
Laurendeau. Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, 
and John Sprinkle (4-0).  

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – PUD MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT – 1301 WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM 
TRAIL - Chairperson Greene stated this is a request to find the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2292 to amend the PUD Master Plan 
to create two separate lots for the property owned by Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC, located at 1301 West 
Orange Blossom Trail, subject to the PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report.  
     
Chairperson Greene stated all of the agenda items are quasi-judicial and anyone giving testimony during a 
quasi-judicial hearing must be sworn in.  He asked that all those who planned to speak during any of these 
hearings to stand and raise their right hand to be sworn in. 
 
Attorney Brackin swore-in staff, petitioners, and affected parties for the quasi-judicial hearing items 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak.  No one 
spoke.  
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Bobby Howell, AICP, Senior Planner, stated this is a request to find the proposed 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2292 
to amend the PUD Master Plan to create two separate lots for the property owned by Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-
Stores, LLC, located at 1301 West Orange Blossom Trail, subject to the PUD Recommendations and the information 
and findings in the staff report. The applicant is Gray Robinson, P.A., c/o Tom Sullivan, and the engineer is 
Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Brian Potts.  The existing use is a Convenience Store w/ Fueling Stations and the 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
2 of 10 

 

proposed use is the same use for Lot 1 and future general business uses on Lot 2.  The land use is 
Commercial and the zoning is PUD/C-2 (Planned Unit Development/Commercial).  Lot 1 is 2.045 +/- acres 
and Lot 2 is 0.895 +/- acre for a total acreage of 2.94 +/- acres. 
 
The subject property is located at 1305 West Orange Blossom Trail and is the site of a gas station and 
associated convenience store. According to Orange County Property Appraiser records, the gas station was 
constructed in 1997. Originally a RaceTrac gas station was located on the property. In 2015 the property 
was sold, and is now the site of a Marathon gas station with an associated convenience store.  
 
On March 6, 2013, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2292, which rezoned the property from C-1 to PUD. 
The C-1 zoning district only permits gasoline sales through a Special Exception and is limited to four 
multiple station pumps and two single station pumps. The RaceTrac gas station had over ten fueling stations, 
and the site was considered a legal, non-conforming use. Ordinance 2292 allows PO/I, CN, C-1, and 
automotive fuel sales, which is a C-2 district permissible use as permitted uses, and was requested by the 
former property owner to remove the legal nonconforming status from the property.  Exhibit “A” of 
Ordinance 2292 contains a PUD Master Plan for the RaceTrac gas station and associated convenience store.  
 
The applicant is requesting an amendment to Ordinance 2292 to amend the PUD Master Plan to create two 
separate lots. Lot 1 identifies the existing Marathon (formerly known as RaceTrac) gas station consisting 
of a 5,928 square foot convenience store with ten fueling stations.  Lot 2 is proposed to remain vacant, but 
is to be marketed for up to 7,200 square feet of general business uses with 24 parking spaces. The applicant 
is requesting the PUD Master Plan amendment to split the property and sell Lot 2 in the future.  
 
The applicant is requesting three deviations to the City’s required development standards.  For a PUD 
master plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a variance but a 
development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned Unit Development 
zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the Land Development Code unless the City 
Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development guideline is adequate 
to protect to the public health safety, and welfare.  Any deviations must be consistent with the policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan. 
 

1. LDC 2.02.13.G.3 - areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts are required to provide a 
minimum five-foot landscaped bufferyard. The applicant is requesting a joint 5-foot wide landscape 
buffer between Lot 1 and Lot 2 in lieu of the required five foot wide landscape buffer on each parcel.   

 
Justification: Both sites consist of commercial uses and there will be substantial landscaping within 
the 5-foot buffer, including 7 Crape Myrtles with 2-inch minimum Caliper 8-foot minimum height, 
a Sweet Viburnum Hedge 24-inch minimum height 36-inches on center and Parsons Juniper 24-
inches on center.  The panhandle portion of Lot 1 will remain as open space. The pan handle portion 
of the property shall be used for open space or stormwater retention only. 
 

2. LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A - requires the minimum requirements for maintenance berms are ten feet around 
the perimeter of the stormwater pond.  The applicant is requesting a reduction in width of the 
maintenance berm of 10 feet with fencing to 5-feet for Lot 2. 
 
Justification:  The proposed concrete wall is setback 10-feet from the property line, due to an 
existing easement.  An additional 10-foot berm on the site side of the wall would take up additional 
room for recharge of the stormwater ponds, necessary to meet the goals and objectives of the City 
of Apopka Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed pond is dry and will allow for maintenance and 
upkeep from inside the pond.  

 
3. Development Design Guidelines Section 4.4, Off-street parking - The applicant is requesting a 

reduction of the requirement of no more than 50% of the required parking spaces in front of the 
proposed building on Lot 2.    



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
3 of 10 

 

 
Justification:  Section 4.4 of the Development Design Guidelines does not permit parking areas to 
be located in the building setback area abutting a residential area. Lot 2 abuts an existing single-
family residential subdivision. In addition, a wider landscape island is proposed in front of the 
proposed building on Lot 2, which increases the amount of open space on site. The reduction also 
allows for a cross access drive aisle in the future to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
The proposed amendment to Ordinance 2292 is consistent with the City’s Commercial Future Land Use 
category. Development plans shall not exceed the intensity allowed under the adopted Commercial Future Land 
Use designation. 
 
The Property is located on a major arterial road (West Orange Blossom Trail).The proposed amendment to 
Ordinance 2292 will not create any land use or traffic compatibility issues with adjacent uses. Development of 
the site must occur consistent with standards set forth in the Land Development Code and Development Design 
Guidelines unless otherwise approved within the PUD master plan. 
 
Areas adjacent to all road right of ways shall provide a minimum ten foot landscape bufferyard.  Areas 
adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six foot high masonry wall within a ten-foot landscape 
buffer. The PUD Master Plan proposes extending an existing six foot high masonry wall located behind the 
Marathon gas station (Lot 1) along the rear of the proposed Lot 2 as it abuts residential development.  
 
The PUD recommendations are that the zoning classification of the following described property be 
designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 
with the following Master Plan provisions: 
 
Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as Planned Unit 
Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the following Master 
Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district are PO/I, CN, C-1, and automotive fuel sales, which is 
C-2 district permissible use. 

 
B. All development standards set forth in the Land Development Code and Development Design 

Guidelines shall apply to development within the PUD unless as otherwise allowed and defined as 
follows: 

 
1. Signage shall comply with the City’s sign codes unless otherwise approved through a master 

sign plan 
 
2.   Illumination plan shall be provided with the preliminary or final development plan. 
 
3.  No outside activities including but not limited to, outside storage of parts, vending machines, 

supplies, merchandise or materials. 
 

C. The C-1 zoning standards shall apply to the development of the subject property unless otherwise 
established herein this ordinance. 

 
D.  A cross access easement shall be illustrated in the  preliminary and final development plans and the 

plat that connect the U.S. 441 entrance to the eastern boundary of the project, allowing for future 
connection to the Victoria Plaza. 

 
E.  The parcel split shall occur through a plat at the time of the final development plan application. 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
4 of 10 

 

F.  No driveway cut will be allowed onto Old Dixie Highway. The northern panhandle portion of the 
Property shall only be used as open space or stormwater retention. 

 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2292, for the 
property owned by Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC, located at 1301 West Orange Blossom Trail, 
subject to PUD Recommendations and the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission Role is advisory to City Council; and can recommend to approve, 
deny or to approve with conditions. 
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 
a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation: Tom Sullivan, Gray Robinson PA, 301 East Pine Street, Suite 1400, Orlando, stated 
he represents the applicant.  Their position is to position this property for sale.  They agree with the staff 
report and stated he was available to answer any questions. 
 
Affected Party Presentation:  None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Tony Foster made a motion to find the proposed amendment consistent with the 

Comprehensive Plan and recommend approval of the amendment to Ordinance 2292 
to amend the PUD Master Plan to create two separate lots; and the deviations from 
Land Development Code (LDC), Section 2.02.13.G.3 to allow a joint 5-foot wide 
landscape buffer between Lot 1 and Lot 2 in lieu of the required five foot wide 
landscape buffer on each parcel; and LDC 6.05.00.D.6.A to allow a reduction in width 
of the maintenance berm of 10 feet with fencing to 5-feet for Lot 2,  for the property 
owned by Spirit SPE Portfolio CA C-Stores, LLC, located at 1301 West Orange 
Blossom Trail, subject to the PUD Recommendations and the information and findings 
in the staff report.  Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast by 
James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, and John Sprinkle. (4-0). (Vote taken 
by poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL – VARIANCE REQUEST – 1350 SHEELER AVENUE - Chairperson Greene 
stated this is a request to approve a request for variance of the Apopka Code of Ordinances, Part III, Land 
Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.15(G)(3), to allow a 30 foot wide landscape buffer in lieu of 
the required 50 foot wide buffer for the property owned by Little Brownie Properties, Inc., c/o Peter Wood, 
President, and located at 1350 Sheeler Avenue. 
  
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Jean Sanchez, Planner I, stated this is a request for variance of the Apopka Code of 
Ordinances, Part III, Land Development Code, Article II, Section 2.02.15(G)(3), to allow a 30 foot wide 
landscape buffer in lieu of the required 50 foot wide buffer for the property owned by Little Brownie 
Properties, Inc., c/o Peter Wood, President, and located at 1350 Sheeler Avenue.  The land use is Industrial 
and the zoning is I-1 (Restricted Industrial).  The existing use is a warehouse.  The tract size is 21.15 +/- 
Acres. 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
5 of 10 

 

Ms. Sanchez stated that Section 2.02.15 (G)(3) – Setback Widths, requires a 50 foot wide buffer where an 
I-1 Industrial Zoning District abuts a residential use or district.  Little Brownie Properties proposes to 
demolish a few small buildings interior to the site and construct a new building near the southern property 
line next to an established residential neighborhood.  To accommodate internal traffic flow within the Little 
Brown Property, the building is proposed to be placed closer to the southern property line.  To accomplish 
this, a required 50 foot wide landscape buffer will need to be reduced to thirty feet.  Presently, no buffer 
exists.  A 30 foot-wide buffer, though not as wide as the Code requirement, will improve existing buffering 
to residential homes to the south. 
 
Variance Request - Code Standard, Sec. 2.02.15(G)(3) - Setback Width - Areas adjacent to residential uses 
or districts shall provide a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard.  The applicant is requesting to be 
allowed a 30' setback from residential subdivision adjacent to the southern property boundary. 

 
Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission must follow two steps to approve 
a variance: 
 
Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall first 

determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to 
the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the Planning 
Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven variance criteria set 
forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 
Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC unless 
it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven variance 
criteria.  

 
APPLICABLE CITY CODES:   
 

1. Section 2.02.15(G)(3) – Areas adjacent to residential uses or districts shall provide a six-foot-high 
masonry wall within a minimum of 50-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 
determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed variance 
arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
 

Applicant’s Response. Because of physical surroundings, topography conditions, and 
physical conditions (buildings, truck docks, driveways, etc.) that have been in place for many 
decades, it has posed practical challenges specific to this property. 
 
Staff Response.  No objection.   
 

Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in Paragraph 
A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning Commission must 
make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the following seven criteria: 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 
variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  Current conditions and operations of the site, which were built 
prior to the current owner's purchase of the property, require a significant amount of 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
6 of 10 

 

space for tractor-trailers to back into south facing bays north of the proposed building.  
Carrying out the setback to the strict letter of the regulation (50' setback) for the proposed 
building will create unsafe maneuvering for the tractor trailers and a reduction in the 
setback to 30' will put the proposed building at the same setback of the two existing 
building it will be replacing.  In addition, elevation differences between the properties to 
the south and our property will reduce the effects of a masonry wall. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

 
Applicant’s Response: The request is based on the desire to enhance the property and 
the properties around it.  The reduction in the setback is based solely on operation of the 
site and not cost. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. However, Planning staff recommends a condition that 
no outdoor storage or vehicle parking occur anywhere within thirty feet of the southern 
property line of the subject Property; and no overnight parking of trucks or trailers shall 
occur in front of the building facing Sheeler Avenue. 

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response:  Although the replacement of two smaller buildings with a large 
building can potentially increase traffic, it will, in no way, impact it enough to increase 
congestion on the surrounding public streets. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 

Applicant’s Response: As stated before, the new building is intended to enhance the 
property and the properties around it by moving the property to flex spacing instead of 
trucking. 

 
Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 
values.   

 
5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 

intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  The proposed variance will result in better conditions for the 
property with a larger building acting as a buffer from existing truck activity within the 
site.  In addition, we are committed to enhancing the buffer planting requirements 
adjacent to the building.  We feel these items are in harmony with the general instant of 
the code. 

 
Staff Response:  No objection.   

 
6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   

 
Applicant’s Response:  All buildings on the site were built prior to the current owner's 
procurement of the property, so special conditions and circumstances do not result from 
the actions of the applicant. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
7 of 10 

 

 
Staff Response: No objection. 

 
7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  As noted above, this variance will make possible the reasonable use 
of the land due to existing conditions and will reduce any potential safety hazards with 
existing operations currently within the site. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection. 

 
Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the variance requested, the role of the 
Planning Commission is to first determine that sufficient substantially competent information indicates 
“whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical 
conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information occurs to accept 
each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
Planning Commission has authority to take final action whether it is to approve, deny, or approve with 
conditions.   
 
This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and 
made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation:  Stephen Allen, Civil Corp. Engineering, Inc., 630 N. Wymore Road, Suite 310, 
Maitland, stated he represented the owner.  They agreed with the staff report and he was available to answer 
any questions. 
 
Affected Party Presentation:  None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.   
 
In response to questions by Martha Worland, 921 Royal Oaks Drive, Apopka, Chairperson Greene stated 
that if the Planning Commission approves the condition recommended by staff, there will be no outdoor 
storage or vehicle parking occurring anywhere within thirty feet of the southern property line of the subject 
property; and no overnight parking of trucks or trailers shall occur in front of the building facing Sheeler 
Avenue.  He stated that Little Brownies Properties, Inc. is not associated with Brownie Septic. 
 
With no one else wishing to speak, Chairperson Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Linda Laurendeau made a motion to determine a hardship does occur pursuant to 

Section 10.02.02.A, that the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical 
surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 
conditions that are unique to the specific property owned by Little Brownie Properties, 
Inc., c/o Peter Wood, President, and located at 1350 Sheeler Avenue.  Motion seconded 
by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James Greene, Tony Foster, Linda 
Laurendeau, and John Sprinkle. (4-0). (Vote taken by poll.) 

 
Motion:   John Sprinkle made a motion to Approve a variance from Section 2.02.15 (G)(3), Land 

Development Code, to allow a 20 foot reduction from the required 50 foot wide 
landscape buffer along the southern property line along the approximately 1,281.2 feet  
of the southern parcel line,  measured westward from the Sheeler Avenue right-of-way. 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
8 of 10 

 

The variance shall expire at the time the site redevelops, allowing conformance to the 
buffer requirements applicable at that time, for property owned by Little Brownie 
Properties, Inc., c/o Peter Wood, President, and located at 1350 Sheeler Avenue.  
Motion seconded by Tony Foster.   

 
Amended 
Motion: Linda Laurendeau made a motion to amend the previous motion to include the 

condition that no outdoor storage or vehicle parking occur anywhere within thirty feet 
of the southern property line of the subject Property; and no overnight parking of 
trucks or trailers shall occur in front of the building facing Sheeler Avenue.  The 
amended Motion was seconded by John Sprinkle.  Aye votes were cast by James 
Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, and John Sprinkle. (4-0). (Vote taken by 
poll.) 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL - PLAT – VISTAS AT WATER’S EDGE, PHASE 1 - Chairperson Greene stated 
this is a request to find the Vistas at Water’s Edge, Phase 1 Plat consistent with the Land Development 
Code; and recommend approval of the Plat subject to the findings of the staff report for the property owned 
by M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC, located south of Hooper’s Farm Road, west and north of Binion Road and 
west of Harmon Road. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if there were any affected parties in attendance that wished to speak. No one 
spoke. 
 
Chairperson Greene asked if the Commission members had any ex parte communications to divulge 
regarding this item.  No one spoke. 
 
Staff Presentation:  Mr. Howell stated this is a request to find the Vistas at Water’s Edge, Phase 1 Plat 
consistent with the Land Development Code; and recommend approval of the Plat subject to the findings 
of the staff report for the property owned by M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC, located south of Hooper’s Farm 
Road, west and north of Binion Road and west of Harmon Road.  The land use is Mixed-Use (Max. 15 
du/ac) and the zoning is Mixed-EC.  The existing use is vacant land and the proposed use is a single-family 
residential subdivision with 80 Lots.  The typical lot widths range from 60 feet to 75 feet.  The lot sizes 
range from a minimum of 7,500 square feet to 24,000 square feet.  The proposed density is 1.90 du/ac.  The 
tract size is 75.24 +/- acres of which 74.254 is developable acreage with 21.52 +/- acres of open space. 
 
On May 17, 2017, the City Council approved a Final Development Plan and Plat for the Vistas at Water’s Edge, 
which proposed the development of 143 single family residential lots and 21.52 acres of active and passive 
recreation space.  The Final Development Plan and Plat detailed the subdivision being constructed in one phase 
with public streets. In 2017, M/I Homes bought the property and submitted a revised Final Development Plan 
and Plat detailing construction of a gated development in two phases with private streets that are proposed to be 
owned and maintained by a yet to be established homeowners association. Subdivision infrastructure is in the 
process of being constructed.  
 
M/I Homes is requesting approval of the Plat for Phase 1 of the Vistas at Water’s Edge, which proposes all 
internal roadways as private instead of publicly owned and maintained. The Phase 1 plat is for 80 single-family 
residential lots. The plat for Phase 2 will be submitted in the future. Located within the Mixed-EC zoning district, 
the proposed subdivision provides a diversity of lot widths and lots sizes for both phases as follows: 
 

Lot Widths 
(Typical) 

Number Percentage 

60 93 66 
65 6 4 
70 32 22 
75 12 8 

 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
9 of 10 

 

The proposed minimum living area, in aggregate of 2,000 square feet, with a no individual unit being less than 
1,600 square feet as set forth in Section 2.02.20.B.4 of the Land Development Code. At the time of the final 
development plan, the developer will be requested to establish criteria to assure a 2,000 square foot aggregate is 
monitored and maintained during the building permit application cycle. 
 
The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 
 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 
Front* 25’ 
Side 5’ 
Rear 20’ 
Corner 25’ 

*Front-entry garage must be setback 30 feet. 
 
Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Binion Road that is gated, and a 
secondary gated emergency and pedestrian access point west of lot 55 connecting to Binion Road is provided. 
 
There are two (2) retention ponds designed to meet the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 
Per Section 2.02.20.H.4a of the Land Development Code, developments made up of less than 300 units shall be 
required to construct a minimum total of 2,000 square feet of facility or facilities for a Neighborhood Activity 
Center. The developer is providing 21.52 acres of active and passive recreation space and is proposing to 
construct a 1,720 square foot clubhouse with swimming pool, picnic area and yoga lawn within the active 
recreational space. Up to 25% of the Neighborhood Activity Center may be in open type facilities.  The 
developer agreed to place a 30-foot wide landscape buffer along Binion Road and to construct an 11-foot wide 
multi-use trail.  The trail will be dedicated to the City as part of the East Shore Trail System.  Furthermore, the 
Master Plan\PDP included passive parks (aka landscaped focal points) at strategic locations to break up long 
rows of homes and also provide views of Lake Apopka.  
 
The applicant has provided a thirty (30) foot wide landscape buffer along Binion Road with an eleven (11) foot 
wide multi-use trail.  The applicant has proposed to use a combination of decorative precast and wrought-iron 
style fence material Binion Road. 
 
The site has previously been cleared and infrastructure has been constructed. The following is a summary of the 
tree replacement program for this project that was previously agreed to prior to the May 2017 City Council 
approvals: 
 

Total inches on-site:        2592 
Total number of specimen trees: 29 
Total inches removed:  1725 
Total inches retained: 867 
Total inches replaced:  1725 
Total Inches (Post Development): 2592 

 
The developer has obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement with Orange County Public Schools to 
address school impacts generated by this residential development. The schools zoned to receive students from 
this community are the following: Apopka Elementary School, Wolf Lake Middle School and Wekiva High 
School.  
 
The County was notified at the time of the subdivision plan and plat for this property through the DRC agenda 
distribution.  
 
The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Vistas at Waters Edge, Phase 1 Plat subject 
to the final review by the City surveyor and city engineer prior to recording the plat. 
 



MINUTES OF THE PLANNING COMMISSION  REGULAR MEETING HELD ON APRIL 10, 2018, AT 5:30 P.M. 

 

 
10 of 10 

 

Staff proposed the Planning Commission recommend approval of the Vistas at Waters Edge, Phase 1 Plat, 
subject to the Conditions of Approval and final review by the City surveyor and city engineer prior to recording 
the plat. 
 
The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to advise the City Council to approve, 
deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development 
Code.     
 
This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated into and made 
a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
Petitioner Presentation: David Brown, M/I Homes of Orlando, Inc., 400 International Parkway, Suite 470, 
Lake Mary, stated he represents the owner.  They agree with the staff report and he was available to answer 
any questions. 
 
Affected Party Presentation: None. 
 
Chairperson Greene opened the meeting for public hearing.  With no one wishing to speak, Chairperson 
Greene closed the public hearing.  
 
Motion:   Tony Foster made a motion to find the Vistas at Water’s Edge, Phase 1 Plat consistent 

with the Land Development Code; and recommended approval of the Plat subject to 
the findings of the staff report for the property owned by M/I Homes of Orlando, LLC, 
located south of Hooper’s Farm Road, west and north of Binion Road and west of 
Harmon Road. Motion seconded by Linda Laurendeau.  Aye votes were cast by James 
Greene, Tony Foster, Linda Laurendeau, and John Sprinkle. (4-0). (Vote taken by 
poll.) 

 
OLD BUSINESS:  None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  None. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:   The meeting was adjourned at 5:59 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
James Greene, Chairperson 
 
 
 
 
James K. Hitt, FRA-RA 
Community Development Director 

 



CITY OF APOPKA 
PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: Master Plan   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    Existing Use Map 
    Ex. A – Master Plan  

    Ex. B – Trail Connection Plan 
  

SUBJECT:  CHANGE OF ZONING, ASSIGNMENT OF KPC NEIGHBORHOOD 

OVERLAY DISTRICT, AND APPROVAL OF MASTER PLAN – 

BRIDLE PATH SUBDIVISION 

 

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 12-20-27-0000-00-032; 12-20-27-0000-00-090 

 

REQUEST: RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING 

 FROM: “COUNTY” PD (ZIP – PLANNED DEVELOPMENT) 

 
TO: “CITY” KPI-MU (KELLY PARK INTERCHANGE 

MIXED USE) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:    AHIFO-18, LLC 
 
APPLICANT:    VHB – c/o Jim Hall  
 
LOCATION: West of Plymouth-Sorrento Road and east of SR 429, approximately  

one-half mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and 
Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

 
EXISTING USE: Vacant, abandoned two story house and horse stables 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Orange County Rural Settlement  
 
CURRENT ZONING: Orange County Planned Development (PD/ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 152 single family homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) 
 
TRACT SIZE:    51 +/- acres 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The owner of the subject property is requesting a rezoning of 51 acres 

of property from Orange County Planned Development (PD/ZIP) to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use 

(KPI-MU), with a Neighborhood character zone to develop a single-family residential subdivision subject 

to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code. The subject property is comprised of 

two parcels and is located east of SR 429 and west of Plymouth-Sorrento Road, approximately one-half 

mile north of the intersection of Kelly Park Road and Plymouth-Sorrento Road. The owner of the properties 

is AHIFO-18, LLC.   

 

Development Profile: 

 

No. of residential lots: 152 single family homes, detached 

Minimum lot width: 
50 

 feet (all lots 50 feet wide) 

 

Minimum lot depth: 100 Feet (all lots 100 feet deep) 

Minimum lot size: 5,500 sq. ft. (all proposed\FBC has no minimum lot size) 

Minimum house livable area: 1,200 sq. ft. (proposed\FBC does not address) 

 

Setbacks:   

 Front: Min. 15 ft – Max. 30 ft 

 Rear: Min. 20 ft 

 Side: Min. 5 ft 

 Garage: Same as front 

Overflow Parking None 

Driveway length: Min. 15 ft – Max. 30 ft. 

On-street parking: None proposed 

Max. number of floors: Two 

Parking: Two space per house within the lot (enclosed or exterior; FBC does not 

require enclosed parking) 

 

Amenities:   

 Pool house with cabana; no parking 

 Walking paths around stormwater ponds (developer proposes mulch\staff recommends 

established surface – concrete or asphalt) 

 Regional Trails:  two – along Plymouth-Sorrento Road, and internal along stormwater pond and 

wetland edges. 

 

In accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, the owner has 

submitted a Master Plan in conjunction with the rezoning application detailing the development of 152 

single-family homes on 51 acres. The property currently has a future land use designation of Orange County 

Rural Settlement. On May 16, 2018 the City Council will consider adoption of a large-scale future land use 

amendment for the subject property; which if approved, will change the future land use designation of the 

property from Orange County Rural Settlement, to City of Apopka Mixed Use Interchange, which is a 

consistent future land use category with the KPI-MU zoning designation. The property is located within the 

one-mile radius from the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange.   

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION: The Master Plan proposes development of the property with a total of 152 

single-family homes on 50-foot by 110-foot wide lots and a minimum living area of 1,200 square feet. There 

are no minimum and maximum lot size and living area requirements in the Form Based Code. Notes 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

provided on the Master Plan indicate the project may be developed in multiple phases, with each phase 

determined upon submittal of the Final Development Plan. The Master Plan details design of the proposed 

subdivision in accordance with the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and the 

Neighborhood character zone, which primarily allows single-family homes as permitted uses. The 

surrounding properties consist of single-family residential and agricultural uses.  

 

Access to the site is proposed via Plymouth-Sorrento Road. A dedication of a 30-foot wide strip for future 

right-of-way needs for Plymouth-Sorrento Road is detailed on the Master Plan. Behind this strip, a 30-foot 

area will be reserved for a landscape buffer along Plymouth-Sorrento Road. A wetland area exists in the 

northwest corner of the development. A spring is located within the wetland area. Per the Comprehensive 

Plan, a 300-foot buffer will be provided around the spring. Stormwater ponds are located in the southwestern 

corner of the site. Four-foot wide walking paths are provided around the perimeter of the ponds. 20-percent 

of the total site area will remain as open space in accordance with the requirements of the Form Based Code. 

Common recreation elements include a clubhouse with a pool, an internal trail system, preserved wetlands, 

upland buffers, and a park/stormwater facility.   

 

The Master Plan details the design of the internal street system with public streets utilizing a walkable grid 

design, which is a fused grid design that includes varied street, sidewalk and pedestrian pathways 

throughout a development that links developments. Three roadway connections will be provided to allow 

cross-access to the properties to the north and south at such time they develop. A 10-foot wide trail will be 

constructed within the development, and connections to the properties to the north and south will be 

provided to facilitate development of a regional trail system. A cul-de-sac is provided in the southwestern 

corner of the site, adjacent to the park and stormwater pond, and is provided to accommodate trail 

connection and to create an open space corridor along stormwater pond system and wetland area.. Properties 

adjacent to the cul-de-sac will have access to the trail system which will allow pedestrian access to the 

common areas internal to the development. The developer will provide a 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail 

along the portion of the development abutting Plymouth-Sorrento Road to help facilitate the construction 

of the regional trail system. 

 

DEVELOPMENT AND ZONING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:  That the zoning classification of 

the following described property be designated as Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU), 

Neighborhood character zone, as defined in the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and with the 

following provisions: 
 

1. Development of the property is subject to the requirements of the Kelly Park Interchange Form 

Based Code, Neighborhood character zone.  

 

2. The architectural design of the buildings must be consistent with Section K.2.g, and Appendix A of 

the Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code.  

 

3. A 10-foot wide trail will be constructed within the development, connecting to future developments 

to the properties located to the north and south will be provided to facilitate development of a 

regional trail system, generally as shown on the Exhibit within the Staff Report. (Policy 20.19,  

FLUE; Sec. Q, FBC) 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

4. A 12-foot wide multi-purpose trail will be constructed along the portion of the development abutting 

Plymouth-Sorrento Road to facilitate the construction of a regional trail system. (Policy 20.19, 

FLUE; Sec. Q, FBC).  The trail shall be placed in an easement or tract. 

 

5. Perpetual easements dedicated to the City of Apopka shall be provided over the internal pedestrian 

pathways and trail networks to allow public access. 

 

6. A minimum living area of 1,200 square feet shall be provided.  

 

7. A development agreement shall address the extension of utilities, dedication of rights-of-way, and 

public access to regional trail facilities. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Mixed-Use Interchange Future Land Use designation and is consistent with the Kelly Park Interchange 

Form Based Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: A School Capacity Enhancement Agreement has been approved by 

OCPS. The location is served by the following schools: Zellwood Elementary, Wolf Lake Middle, and 

Wekiva High School.  No development activity shall occur on the subject property until the developer has 

obtained a school concurrency mitigation agreement or letter from OCPS.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

Orange County was notified on April 3, 2018.   

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 6, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 20, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

April 27, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use 

(KPI-MU), and assignment of a Neighborhood character zone consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Kelly Park Interchange Form Based Code, and recommends approval of the Bridle Path Master Plan. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed zoning and Master Plan consistent with the Comprehensive 

Plan and Land Development Code and Neighborhood Overlay District, and recommend to approve the 

rezoning of the subject parcels from Orange County Planned Development (PD/ZIP) to Kelly Park 

Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) and the KPC Neighborhood Overlay District, and approval of the Master 

Plan based on the findings and facts presented in the staff report, exhibits, and City Council approval of a 

Development Agreement. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Rural A-1 (ZIP) Single-family residential/woodlands 

East 

(County) 

Rural A-1 Woodlands/Plymouth-Sorrento Road 

South (City) Rural RCE-2 (ZIP) Equestrian track 

West (City) None SR 429 right-of-way  SR 429 

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Plymouth-Sorrento Road. Internal streets 

are public and will be owned and maintained by the City of Apopka. 
Future land use designations and zoning categories assigned to 
properties to the north, south, east, and west are predominantly 
residential, and agricultural.    

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed Kelly Park Interchange Mixed-Use (KPI-MU) zoning 

is compatible with policies set forth in the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Master Plan. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 
Project: BRIDLE PATH 

Owned by:  AHIFO-18, LLC 

Located: WEST OF PLYMOUTH-SORRENTO ROAD AND EAST OF SR 429 

Parcel ID#s: 12-20-27-0000-00-032, 12-20-27-0000-00-090 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

BRIDLE PATH – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Subject properties  











EXHIBIT “B” 

Regional Trail and Pedestrian Paths Connections 

Yellow – Pedestrian Paths 

Pink – Regional Trail Connection 

 

 



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 

  
SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – LYNN R. FONTAINE 
    
PARCEL ID NO.: 35-20-27-0000-00-037 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – LYNN R. FONTAINE 
  FROM: “COUNTY” RURAL 
  TO: “CITY” RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 DU/AC) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Lynn R. Fontaine 
 
LOCATION: 4353 McDonald Gley Rd.  
 
EXISTING USE: Single Family Home 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1  
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single Family Home 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” RCE-2 (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being 

processed along with a request for change of zoning from “County” A-1 to 
“City” RCE-2 (Residential Country Estate).  

 
TRACT SIZE:   5.2 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 10 Single Family Homes 
    PROPOSED:  10 Single Family Homes 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING/Small Scale Flu Amends/2018/Fontaine 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed in the city on April 18, 2018 by Ordinance 
2641.  Presently, the subject property does not have a “city” future land use designation or “city” zoning 
classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of “city” Residential Very Low 
Suburban.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 
Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 
allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies 
support a Residential Very Low Suburban FLUM designation at the subject site:  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.c 
 
Very Low Density Suburban Residential 
 

The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary schools; 
middle schools, high schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:    The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase in the number of residential units by more than nine which could be developed at the subject 
property.  Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal 
Planning Agreement. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: 
The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before any public hearing or advisory board.  The 
City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 
May 16, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
June 6, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
April 24, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification 
  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Residential Very Low Suburban for the property owned by Lynn R. 
Fontaine, and located at 4353 McDonald Gley Road.  
 
Planning Commission Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and 
recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” Rural to “City” 
Residential Very Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City and 

County) 

“City” Agriculture and “County” Rural “City” Agriculture and 

“County” A-1 

Agriculture and Single Family 

Homes 

East (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1A Subdivision (Chandler Estates) 

South (City and 

County) 

“City” Residential Low Suburban and 

“County” Rural 

“City” R-1A and 

“County” A-1 

Single Family Homes 

West (County) Rural A-1 Single Family Home 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for residential use, which makes the request for a 
Residential Very Low Suburban future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
policies listed above, as well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
Properties to the south, north and west are low density single-family homes. The Chandler Estates 
subdivision is to the east. Due to the connection of a local road, and no presence of collector or arterial 
roads, staff views this property as favorable for a residential very low future land use designation. 
 
The proposed Residential Very Low Suburban future land use designation is consistent with the general 
future land use character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is not located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.  The 
proposed FLUM Amendment request for a change from “County” Rural (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Residential 
Very Low Suburban (0-2 du / ac) is consistent with the terms of the JPA (Second Amendment).  Lynn R. 
Fontaine is the applicant of the proposed future land use amendment and proposed change of zoning for the 
Property, and has been notified of the hearing schedule.   
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from McDonald Gley. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property comprises mostly of grasslands, with some 
tree cover. Additionally, the property has a single family home. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du / ac).  Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED: 2 Unit = 6 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    3,528  GPD 
   

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     210  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   3,780  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     4    lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   192    lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.144    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

Lynn R. Fontaine 

5.2 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  

To: “City” Residential Very Low Suburban 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 

To: RCE-2 

Parcel ID #: 35-20-27-0000-00-037 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 

  
SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – LYNN R. FONTAINE 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FOR 

LYNN R. FONTAINE 
  FROM: “COUNTY” A-1 (AGRICULTURE) 
  TO: “CITY” RCE-2 (RESIDENTIAL COUNTRY ESTATE) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Lynn R. Fontaine 
 
LOCATION:  4353 McDonald Gley Rd.  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  35-20-27-0000-00-037 
 
EXISTING USE:   Single Family Home  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-1  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 2 Single Family Homes 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” RCE-2 (Residential Country Estate) (Note: this Change of 

Zoning request is being processed along with a request to amend the 
Future Land Use from “County” Rural (1 du / 10 ac) to Residential 
Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) and an application for annexation. 

 
TRACT SIZE:    5.2 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 1 single family home 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 1 single family home 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Fontaine 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 
category.  The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of RCE-2 (Residential 
Country Estates) to the property. 
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the city on April 18, 2018 by Ordinance Number 2641. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to RCE-2 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and 
with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is 
being processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” Rural to “City” 
Residential Low Suburban. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 16, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 6, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
 
Public Notice and Notification- April 24, 2018 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” RCE-2 for the property owned by Lynn R. Fontaine, and 
located at 4353 McDonald Gley Rd. 
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” RCE-2 for the property owned by Lynn R. 
Fontaine, and located at 4353 McDonald Gley Rd. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

 
 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City and 

County) 

“City” Agriculture and “County” Rural “City” Agriculture and 

“County” A-1 

Agriculture and Single Family 

Homes 

East (City) Residential Low Suburban R-1A Subdivision (Chandler Estates) 

South (City and 

County) 

“City” Residential Low Suburban and 

“County” Rural 

“City” R-1A and 

“County” A-1 

Single Family Homes 

West (County) Rural A-1 Single Family Home 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by McDonald Gley Rd.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed RCE-2 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use designation, “Residential Low Suburban” (0-3.5 du / ac) 

and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use designation.   
          

ALLOWABLE USES:   

 

1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

2. Guest/granny quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

ZONING REGULATIONS:  Minimum Site Area: 2 Acres 

Minimum Lot Width: 150 ft. 

Front Setback: 35 ft. 

Side Setback: 15 ft. 

Rear Setback: 30 ft.  

Corner Setback: 35 ft. 

Minimum Living Area: 2,200 sq. ft.  

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

Lynn R. Fontaine 

5.20 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  

To: “City” Residential Low Suburban 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-1 

To: “City” RCE-2 

Parcel ID #: 35-20-27-0000-00-037 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LYNN R. FONTAINE - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses Map 
    WPIVP1 Map    
    WPIVP Character Districts 
    Comp Plan Objectives 
    JPA Amendment No. 2 

  
SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – KENT GREER 
    
PARCEL ID NOS.: 14-20-27-0000-00-021; 14-20-27-0000-00-084; 14-20-27-0000-00-005 
    
REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – LARGE 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT FOR KENT GREER 
  FROM: RURAL SETTLEMENT (1 DU/AC) 
  TO: MIXED USE INTERCHANGE (0 – 5 DU/AC) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:   Kent Greer 
 
APPLICANT: Hanover Land Company 
 
LOCATION: South of West Kelly Park Road, East of Round Lake Road 
 
EXISTING USE: Single Family House and Agriculture – grazing 
  
CURRENT ZONING:  Agriculture 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT: 139 Single Family Lot Subdivision 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Mixed Use Interchange Zoning District with Neighborhood Overlay Zone 

TRACT SIZES:   39.15 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE  
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: Max. 7 residential units 

PROPOSED: Max. 195 residential units 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

                                                           
1 WPIVP – Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 2 

 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: The applicant requests a future land use designation of “City” Mixed Use 
Interchange.  Presently, the applicant proposes a residential subdivision consisting of 139 single family lots.  
 
Policy 20.9, Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive Plan, requires that a Mixed Use Interchange 
future a land use designation must be assigned to the property. 
 
The subject parcels are located within the one-mile radius from the Wekiva Parkway interchange at Kelly 
Park Road; and therefore is required to adhere to the Kelly Park Crossing Form Based Code.  The properties 
are located within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area.  Therefore, the property must comply 
with Objectives 18 – 20 and related policies within the Future Land Use Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan and the recently adopted Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code.  The applicant’s request is consistent 
with the Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation and the Overlay District covering the property 
within the Vision Plan. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is compatible with the 
character of the surrounding area, is within one mile of the SR 429/Kelly Park Road interchange, and is 
consistent with the Mixed Use Interchange Land Use designation.  City planning staff supports the FLUM 
amendment given the consistency with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed below and the intent of the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan a (see Land Use Analysis below).   Site development cannot 
exceed the intensity allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 
residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional and public facilities uses to serve 
the residential and non-residential needs of special areas of the City.  The mix of land uses may occur 
on a single parcel or multiple parcels … 
 
The designation of a mixed use category may occur only in certain areas of the city, including “land 
anticipated for inclusion within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Land Use Plan…” These 
properties are within the 1-mile radius of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange depicted on the Wekiva 
Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Map located within the Future Land Use Element of the Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

2. Policy 18.1 The City shall implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, which guides 
the location of a range of uses, such as residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, public 
and institutional, at various densities and intensities around the proposed interchange. 
 
The proposed Mixed Use Future Land Use Designation allows for residential densities and non-
residential uses and intensities to implement the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan, 
consistent with Objective 18 and related policies.  
 

3. Policy 18.2 Prior to rezoning any property within a one-mile radius of the interchange Study Area, 
the City shall amend its LDC to incorporate development standards that will implement the Vision 
Plan. 
 
This future land use amendment does not include a corresponding proposed zoning category because 
the City has yet to adopt development standards or form-based code consistent with this policy.  
Future densities/intensities and design character for the subject properties will be regulated at the 
time of rezoning once Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan design standards and form-based 
code are adopted.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 3 

 
4. Policy 20.4 Prior to approving the first development plan with the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 

vision Plan Area, the City shall adopt the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Form-Based Cod establishing 
the design and development standards for the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area. 
 
The subject properties will be required to comply with the above policy should the development 
submit a development plan to ensure consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan. 
 

5. Policy 20.9 Development within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area shall be assigned a 
Mixed-Use Interchange future land use designation and shall accomplish an overall mix of residential 
and non-residential uses as outline in Policy 3.1.r.  Assignment of the Mixed-Use Interchange Land 
Use future land use designation shall require an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The applicant’s request for a Mixed Use future land use designation is consistent with this policy, 
as well as the intent of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan area, which intends to 
concentrate a mixture of land uses with varying densities and intensities within one mile of the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange. 
 

6. Policy 20.3.  The annexation, land use change, and subsequent development of lands located within 
the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area for Apopka and the Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan 
Overlay for the County shall be consistent with the adopted Interlocal Agreement between Orange 
County and the City of Apopka regarding Wekiva Interchange Land Use Plan Overlay. 
 

7. Objective 19 and 20, and their associated policies.  See objectives and policies within the 
supporting information. 

 
Transportation Element 
 

1. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 
mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, short trip lengths and 
balanced trip demand. 
 
The Mixed Use future land use designation allows for a mixture of land use types such as residential 
and non-residential, which promotes shorter trip lengths, concentrated development to reduce travel 
demand. 
 

2. Policy 3.1.r The primary intent of the Mixed Use land use category is to allow a mixture of 
residential, office, commercial, industrial, recreation, institutional uses and public facilities 
uses…This mix of land uses may occur on a single parcel or multiple parcels in the form of: a 
permitted single use; a vertical combination of different permitted uses; or a horizontal mix of 
different permitted uses. 
 

3. Policy 4.2 The City of Apopka shall promote, through the implementation of programs such as 
mixed-use land development, projects that support reduced travel demand, shorter trip lengths and 
balanced trip demand. 
 

4. Objective 20 and associated Policies, Future Land Use Element.  Provided with the Supporting 
Information. 
 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 4 

 
VISIONING AND SPECIAL STUDIES:  The properties are located within the boundaries of the Wekiva 
Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area, making it subject to the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code, 
Mixed- Use Interchange Zoning District and Neighborhood Overlay District.  A copy of the Wekiva 
Parkway Interchange Vision Plan is provided with the support material. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:   An executed capacity enhancement agreement with Orange County 
Public Schools will be required prior to adoption of the future land use amendment. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on March 9th, 2018.    
Notification has already occurred through the Second Amendment to the Joint Planning Agreement with 
Orange County government.  The second amendment acknowledges that the City will assign a land use 
designation similar to the overlay district illustrated in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 8, 2018– Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  
May 16, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading & Transmittal 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: 
April 24, 2018– Public Notice and Notification 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use to 

Mixed Use Interchange for the property owned by Kent Greer subject to the information and findings in the 

staff report. 

 

Recommended Motion:  Find the Future Land Use Designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 

and recommend a change in Future Land Use Designation to Mixed Use Interchange for the properties 

owned by Kent Greer subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 5 

 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City and 

County) 

“City” Agriculture and 

“County” Rural  

“City” Agriculture 

and “County” Rural  

Nurseries and Single Family Homes 

East (County) “County” Rural  “County” A-1 Nursery 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1 Nurseries and Single Family Homes  

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-1  Single Family Homes 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
Analysis for the Future Land Use Designation was performed as part of the adopted Wekiva Parkway 
Interchange Vision Plan.  This Vision Plan has been incorporated into the Comprehensive Plan.  The subject 
property straddles the one-mile radius from the interchange, and the property owner has selected to pull the 
entire property into the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area (aka Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan Area). 
 
Therefore, the proposed Mixed Use Interchange future land use designation is consistent with the general 
future land use character and long-range planning goals of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan Area: Yes 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004 and amended the JPA in October 19, 2010 to address the Wekiva Parkway Interchange 
Vision Plan.  The subject property is consistent with the Vision Plan incorporated into Amendment 2 of the 
Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from West Kelly Park Road. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and storm water run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2; Objective 19, 20. 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that the parcels appear to occur within an area having a potential for  karst features. 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 6 

 
Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the property is for agriculture. Analysis 

of the FLUM designation occurred as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: Based on the adoption 
of the JPA, the size of the property, and the proposed land use change, the amendment will increase the 
population by as many as 518 residents.  The applicant proposes to develop the property as single family 
residential subdivision. Land use analysis was conducted as part of the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan. 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
 
 ADOPTED: 7 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 18 persons 

PROPOSED: 195 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 518 persons  
   
 Housing Needs:  The housing need is demonstrated through the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision 
Plan area Study. 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan.  .  The road system shall be consistent with 
the intent of the Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  1,372    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    38,220  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 7 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     1,470  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   40,950  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     28    lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   2,072    lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 8 

 
2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  

 
3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 
4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.054  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  1.554    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 9 

 

Kent Greer 

Property Owners 

39.15 +/- Acres 

Proposed Large Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From:  Rural Settlement 

To: Mixed Use Interchange 
Parcel ID #: 14-20-27-0000-00-021, 084, 005 

  
 

VICINITY MAP  

 

 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 10 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

KENT GREER – LARGE SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 

PAGE 12 

 
 

 

 

Kelly Park Crossing Form-Based Code Area 

 

        

 

Subject 

Property 























































 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 
  
SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – LAURA R. MURPHY 

    

PARCEL ID NO: 28-20-28-0000-00-060 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FOR 

LAURA R. MURPHAY – 359 W. LESTER ROAD 

  FROM: AG (AGRICULTURE) 

  TO: R-1 (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE) 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Laura R. Murphy 
 
LOCATION:  359 W. Lester Road 
 
EXISTING USE:   Errol Equestrian Center  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  Agriculture 
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 52 Single Family Homes (Proposed) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: R-1 (Single Family Residential)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    19.94 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 1 single family home 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 69 single family homes 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Laura Murphy 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LAURA R. MURPHY - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:   The future land use, for the subject parcel, was amended on May 2, 2018 
from “Agriculture” to “Residential Low Suburban”. The existing Future Land Use, “Residential Low 
Suburban” and the proposed zoning, “R-1”, are the same conditions as the nearby subdivision, “Rock 
Springs Estates”.  
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area.  
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du / ac) Future Land Use designation. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  

 

ORANGE COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS:  The applicant obtained a Capacity Enhancement Agreement 

(CEA) with Orange County Public Schools (OCPS) prior to the subject property’s Future Land Use 

amendment on May 2, 2018. The applicant is required to obtain a concurrency mitigation agreement prior 

to adoption of the Final Development Plan. 

 

Elementary School: Rock Springs Elementary 

Middle School: Apopka Middle School 

High School: Apopka High School 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 16, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 6, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
 
Public Notice and Notification- April 24, 2018 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from Agriculture to R-1 for the property owned by Laura Murphy, and located at 359 W. 
Lester Road 
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from Agriculture to R-1 for the property owned by Laura Murphy, and 
located at 359 W. Lester Road, subject to City Council approval of Ordinance No. 2617. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LAURA R. MURPHY - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by W. Lester Road. A multi-use 

trail, which links to the West Orange Trail, is on the south side of W. 

Lester Road. The Rock Springs Estates Subdivision, sharing the same 

future land use and proposed zoning is southwest of the subject 

property. East adjacent of the subject property is the Avian 

Reconditioning Center.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Residential Low Suburban” (0-3.5 du / ac) and with 

the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use designation.   
      
ALLOWABLE USES:   
 

1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

2. Guest/granny quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

R-1 ZONING REGULATIONS: 

 

Minimum Site Area: 8,000 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width: 75 ft. 

Front Setback: 25 ft. (30 ft. for front loaded garages) 

Side Setback: 10 ft. 

Rear Setback: 20 ft. 

Corner Setback: 25 ft. 

Minimum Living Area: 1,500 sq. ft.  

  

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” A-1 Woodlands 

East (City) “City” Agriculture “City”AG Bird Reconditioning Center 

South (City & 

County) 

“City” Residential Low &  

“County” Low Medium Density Residential 

“City” R-2 & 

“County” A-2 

Single Family Homes 

West (County) “County” Low Density Residential “County” A-1 Greenhouses 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LAURA R. MURPHY - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

Laura R. Murphy, Property Owner 

+/- 19.94 
Rezoning 

From: Agriculture  
To: R-1 (Single Family Residential)  

Parcel ID # 28-20-28-0000-00-060 
 

VICINITY MAP 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LAURA R. MURPHY - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

LAURA R. MURPHY - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
 

 



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 

  
SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – JANINE AND RICHARD EDMONDSON 

   

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 24-20-27-0000-00-085 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT FOR JANINE AND 

RICHARD EDMONDSON 

  FROM: “COUNTY” RURAL 

  TO: “CITY” RESIDENTIAL VERY LOW SUBURBAN (0-2 DU /AC) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS/APPLICANTS: Janine and Richard Edmondson 
 
LOCATION: 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road  
 
EXISTING USE: Single Family Home 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-2  
 
EXISTING 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single Family Home 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” R-1AA (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed 

along with a request for annexation and to change the zoning classification from 
“County” A-2 to “City” R-1AA (Residential Single Family District).  

 
TRACT SIZE:   1.0 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: Single Family Home 
    PROPOSED:  2 Single Family Homes 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION: 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING/Small Scale Flu Amends/2018/Rochelle 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed in the city on April 18, 2018 by 
Ordinance 2640.  Presently, the subject property does not have a “city” future land use designation or 
“city” zoning classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of “city” 
Residential Very Low Suburban.  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Residential Very Low Suburban Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity 

allowed by the Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies 

support a Residential Very Low Suburban FLUM designation at the subject site:  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.c 
 
Very Low Density Suburban Residential 
 

The primary use shall be residential dwelling units up to 2 dwelling units per acre, elementary schools; 
middle schools; supporting infrastructure of less than two acres, neighborhood parks. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  :  The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  

May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 16, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 6, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

April 24, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Residential Very Low Suburban for the property owned by Janine and 
Richard Edmondson, and located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road.  
 
Planning Commission Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and 
recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” Rural to “City” 
Residential Very Low Suburban, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Rural “County” A-2 Greenhouse 

East (City) “City” Residential Very Low Suburban “City” R-1AAA Agriculture 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-2 Single Family Home 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-2 Greenhouse 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for commercial use, which makes the request for a 
Commercial future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above, as 
well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
Properties to the south and west are developed as existing single-family homes, which properties to the east 
and north are vacant, but have a future land use designation and zoning classification that permit single-
family residential.  
 
The proposed Residential Low Suburban future land use designation is consistent with the general future 
land use character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.  The proposed 
FLUM Amendment request for a change from “County” Rural (0-1 du/10 ac) to “City” Residential Very Low 
Suburban (0-2 du / ac) is consistent with the terms of the JPA (Second Amendment. Janine and Richard 
Edmondson are the applicants of the proposed future land use amendment and proposed change of zoning 
for the property, and have been notified of the hearing schedule.   
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Plymouth Sorrento Road. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property contains a single family home with a 2,486 
sq. ft. living area and moderate tree coverage.  
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du / ac).  Based on the housing 
element of the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED: 1 Unit = 5 persons 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  196    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    392  GPD 
 
   

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     210  GPD 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   392  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
 Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     12    lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   20    lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  0.009  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  0.015    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

 Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

Janine and Richard Edmondson 
1 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural  

To: “City” Residential Very Low Suburban 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-2 
To: R-1AA 

Parcel ID #: 24-20-27-0000-00-085 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

ROCHELLE EDMONDSON - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 

  
SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – JANINE AND RICHARD EDMONDSON 

   

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 24-20-27-0000-00-085 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FOR JANINE 

AND RICHARD EDMONDSON 

  FROM: “COUNTY” A-2 (AGRICULTURAL) 

  TO: “CITY” R-1AA (SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNERS/APPLICANTS: Janine and Richard Edmondson 
 
LOCATION: 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Road  
 
PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 24-20-27-0000-00-085 
 
EXISTING USE: Single Family Home 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” A-2  
 
EXISTING 
DEVELOPMENT:  Single Family Home 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” R-1AA (Note: this Change of Zoning request is being processed along with 

a request to amend the Future Land Use from “County” Rural to “City” Residential 
Very Low Suburban (0-2 du/ac) 

 
TRACT SIZE:   1.0 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: Single Family Home 
    PROPOSED:  2 Single Family Homes 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING//Rezoning/2018/Rochelle 

  
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

EDMONDSON - REZONE 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 
category.  The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of R-1AA (Single Family 
Residential) to the property. 
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the city on April 18, 2018 by Ordinance Number 2641 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to R-1AA is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and 
with the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is 
being processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” Rural to “City” 
Residential Very Low Suburban. 
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 

with the proposed Residential Very Low Suburban (0-2 du / ac) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  :  The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  

May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 16, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 6, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

April 24, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from “County” A-2 to “City” R-1AA for the property owned by Janine and Richard 
Edmondson, and located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” A-2 to “City” R-1AA for the property owned by Janine 
and Richard Edmondson, and located at 3904 Plymouth Sorrento Rd. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

EDMONDSON - REZONE 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Rural “County” A-2 Greenhouse 

East (City) “City” Residential Very Low Suburban “City” R-1AAA Agriculture 

South (County) “County” Rural “County” A-2 Single Family Home 

West (County) “County” Rural “County” A-2 Greenhouse 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by Plymouth Sorrento Rd.   

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed R-1AA zoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use designation, “Residential Very Low Suburban” (0-2 du / ac) 

and with the character of the surrounding area and future proposed 

development. Development Plans shall not exceed the density 

allowed in the adopted Future Land Use designation.   
      
ALLOWABLE USES:   
 

1. Single-family dwellings and their customary accessory structures 

and uses in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

      2. Guest/granny quarters in accordance with article VII of this code. 

 

ZONING SETBACKS: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Minimum Site Area 12,500 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot 

Width 
95 ft. 

Front 25 ft. (30 ft. for front loaded garages) 

Side 10 ft. 

Rear 20 ft.  

Corner 25 ft.  

Minimum Living 

Area 
1,700 sq. ft.  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

EDMONDSON - REZONE 
PAGE 4 
 

 

Janine and Richard Edmondson 
1 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Rural  

To: “City” Residential Very Low Suburban 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” A-2 
To: R-1AA 

Parcel ID #: 24-20-27-0000-00-085 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

EDMONDSON - REZONE 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

EDMONDSON - REZONE 
PAGE 6 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

EDMONDSON - REZONE 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 

  

SUBJECT:    COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE 

AMENDMENT – SUNTRUST BANK 

   

PARCEL ID NUMBER: 11-21-28-0750-00-050 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT FOR SUNTRUST BANK 

  FROM: “COUNTY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. 3.0 FAR) 

  TO: “CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. 2.5 FAR) 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER: SunTrust Bank 
 
APPLICANT: Casseaux, Hewett, and Walpole 
 
LOCATION: 920 E. Semoran Blvd.  
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” R-2  
 
DEVELOPMENT  
POTENTIAL:    4,055 sq. ft. commercial space   
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-1 (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed along 

with a request to change the zoning classification from “County” R-2 to “City” C-1 
(Retail Commercial).  

 
TRACT SIZE:   0.37 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT:  EXISTING: 48,351 sq. ft.   
    PROPOSED: 4,029 sq. ft.  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING/Small Scale Flu Amends/2018/SunTrust 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 
 ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed in the city on April 18, 2018 by 
Ordinance 2642.  Presently, the subject property does not have a “city” future land use designation or “city” 
zoning classification assigned. The applicant requests a future land use designation of “city” Commercial.  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Commercial Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 

Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a 

Commercial FLUM designation at the subject site:  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.i 
 
Commercial 
 

Primary uses shall be for business, commerce, and convenience shopping which may be neighborhood or 
community oriented. The maximum floor area ratio shall be .25 gross floor area. Institutional land uses of 
less than five acres; and public facilities or utilities of less than five acres. 
 
The expansion of strip commercial areas shall be prohibited except in infill areas.  
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 16, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 6, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

April 24, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Future Land Use Designation of Commercial for the property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located at 920 
E. Semoran Blvd.  
 
Planning Commission Recommended Motion:  Find the proposed Future Land Use amendment 
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and 
recommend approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from “County” Commercial to “City” 
Commercial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Commercial “County” C-3 Agriculture and Single Family Homes 

East (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-1 Subdivision (Chandler Estates) 

South (City and County) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Single Family Homes 

West (County) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Single Family Home 

 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS: 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for commercial use, which makes the request for a 
Commercial future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above, as 
well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
Properties at all cardinal directions are zoned for commercial usage, and the subject property is adjacent to 
an arterial road, East Semoran Boulevard.  
 
The proposed Commercial future land use designation is consistent with the general future land use 
character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No  
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from Semoran Boulevard 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 

Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The property comprises mostly of grasslands, with some 
tree cover. Additionally, the property has a single family home. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR).  Based on the housing element of 
the City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 Sanitary Sewer Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 
GPD / Capita 

 
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 
 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:  7,253    GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    604  GPD 
   

4. Capacity available:  Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 
None 

 
 Potable Water Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 
GPD / Capita 

  
 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 
  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:     9,670  GPD 
 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   806  GPD 
 

4. Capacity available: Yes 
 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 
 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 
amendment: None 

 
8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 
Solid Waste 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 
Apopka 

 
3. Projected LOS under existing designation:     97    lbs/  day 

 
4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:    8    lbs /  day 

 
5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  
 
 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
 
 Infrastructure Information 
 
 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 
 
 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 
 
 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 
 
 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 
 
 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 
 
 Drainage Analysis 
 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 
 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  
 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 
 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 
 
 Recreation 
 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 
capita 

 
2. Projected facility under existing designation:  N/A  acres 

 
3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A    acres 

 
4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 
 

Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

SunTrust Bank 
0.37 +/- acres  

Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 
From: “County” Commercial  

To: “City” Commercial 
Proposed Change of Zoning: 

From: “County” R-2 
To: “City” C-1 

Parcel ID #: 11-21-28-0750-00-050 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 
 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 
 OTHER:   Vicinity Map 
    Adjacent Zoning 
    Adjacent Uses 

  
SUBJECT:    CHANGE OF ZONING – SUNTRUST BANK 

   

PARCEL ID NUMBERS: 11-21-28-0750-00-050 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE CHANGE OF ZONING FOR 

SUNTRUST BANK  

  FROM: “COUNTY” R-2  

  TO: “CITY” C-1 (COMMERCIAL RETAIL) 
  
SUMMARY 
 
OWNER:    SunTrust Bank 
 
APPLICANT:    Causseaux, Hewett, and Walpole, Inc. 
 
LOCATION:  920 E Semoran Blvd  
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant  
 
CURRENT ZONING:  “County” R-2  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: 4,029 sq. ft. commercial space 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” C-1 (Commercial Retail) (Note: this Change of Zoning request 

is being processed along with a request to amend the Future Land Use 
from “County” Commercial (Max. 3.0 FAR) to “City” Commercial 
(Max. 0.25 FAR) 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.37 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: 48,351 sq. ft. commercial space 
ZONING DISTRICT:                         PROPOSED: 4,029 sq. ft. commercial space 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A  
 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\Suntrust 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property has not been assigned a “City” zoning 
category.  The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of C-1 (Commercial Retail) 
to the property. 
 
The subject parcel was annexed into the city on April 18, 2018 by Ordinance Number 2642. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to C-1 is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is being 
processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” Commercial to “City” 
Commercial. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed C-1 (Commercial Retail) Future Land Use designation. 
 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT: The proposed future land use change will result in an insignificant 
increase (less than 9) in the number of residential units which could be developed at the subject property.  
Therefore, the property is exempt from school capacity enhancement per the School Interlocal Planning 
Agreement. 
  
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on April 2, 2018.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

May 16, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

June 6, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
Public Notice and Notification- April 24, 2018 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from “County” R-2 to “City”C-1 for the property owned by SunTrust Bank, and located 
at 920 E Semoran Blvd.  
 
Recommended Motion: Planning Staff recommends finding the proposed amendment consistent with the 
Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval 
of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” R-2 to “City” C-1 for the property owned by SunTrust 
Bank, and located at 920 E Semoran Blvd. 
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 
 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) “County” Commercial “County” C-3 Retail Uses 

East (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-1 and C-2 Auto Parts Vendor and Vacant Lot 

South (City) “City” Commercial “City” C-2 Vacant  

West (City) Commercial “City” C-1 and C-2 Bank and Vacant Lots 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The property is currently accessed by East Semoran Blvd. 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed C-1 zoning is consistent with the proposed Future Land 

Use designation, “Commercial” (Max 0.25 FAR) and with the 

character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.   
      
ALLOWABLE USES: 1. Any nonresidential permitted use in the PO/I or CN districts. 

2. Retail establishments. 

3. Banks, savings and loan and other financial institutions. 

4. Bowling alleys, skating rinks, billiard parlors and similar 

amusement centers, provided such activities and facilities are 

enclosed within a sound-proof building. 

5. Churches and schools. 

6. Day nurseries, kindergartens and other child care centers. 

7. Drive-in restaurants, with property lines no closer than 200 feet 

from any residential districts or uses. 

8. Florist shops, the products of which are displayed and sold wholly 

within an enclosed building. 

9. Hotels, motels, bed and breakfast facilities. 

10. Personal service establishments such as barbershops, beauty 

parlors, professional and other offices, parking garages and lots, 

laundry and dry cleaning pickup station, self-service coin-operated 

laundry and dry cleaning establishments, shoe shine and repair, 

tailoring, travel services, watch and clock repair and locksmiths, etc. 

11. Post offices. 

12. Restaurants. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

13. Theaters, enclosed in structures. 

14. Clubs and lodges. 

15. Funeral parlors, when the sole use of the facility shall be for 

funeral rites. 

16. Animal clinics for the treatment of small animals, excluding farm 

animals, but including those animals no larger than a dog, commonly 

kept as pets in a residence, provided the care, treatment or housing of 

such animals shall not be allowed on the outside. 

17. Other uses which are similar and compatible to the uses permitted 

herein which adhere to the intent of the district and which are not 

prohibited as specified in this code. Use determination shall be based 

upon the community development director's recommendation. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

SunTrust Bank 

0.37 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Commercial  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: “County” R-2  

To: “City” C-1 
Parcel ID #: 11-21-28-0750-00-050  

 

VICINITY MAP 
  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

ADJACENT ZONING MAP 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 

SUNTRUST BANK - REZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Site Pictures 
  
SUBJECT:    VARIANCE - NILSA GONZALEZ- 301 MCCOY VILLAGE COURT 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE VII, 

SECTION 7.01.08 (H) TO ALLOW A CORNER LOT FENCE CLOSER TO 

THE PROPERTY LINE THAN THE REQUIRED 25 FEET. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:  Nilsa Gonzalez 

 
LOCATION:  301 McCoy Village Court 
 
LAND USE:  Residential Medium (0-10 du/ac)  

 
ZONING:   R-3 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residence – one home site 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Single Family Residence – one home site 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicant requests a variance to allow a fence to be located 

approximately five feet from the property line. On a corner lot, such 

as this, twenty five feet is required between the fence and the property 

line.  
 
TRACT SIZE:  0.12 +/- acre  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 2 

 

 

 
APPLICABLE CITY CODE:   
 
7.01.08 Fences (shall include walls) 
 
H. Fences may be permitted in any residential or office district; provided, that no fence or wall shall be 

erected or maintained within 25 feet from the property line on a corner intersection of street right-
of-way. Fences or walls erected beyond the front building line shall be limited to a maximum height 
of four feet. A fence or wall shall be limited to a maximum height of eight feet in the rear and side 
yards. 

 
LIMITATIONS GRANTING VARIANCES: 
 

A. Initial determination. The zoning board of appeals shall first determine whether the need for the 
proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical condition, or other 
physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property involved. If so, the 
zoning board of appeals shall make the following required findings based on the granting of the 
variance for that site alone. If, however, the condition is common to numerous sites so that requests 
for similar variances are likely to be received, the zoning board of appeals shall make the required 
findings based on the cumulative effect of granting the variance to all who may apply. 
 
Under no circumstances shall the zoning board of appeals grant a variance to permit a use not 
generally or by special exception permitted in this code or any use expressly or by implication 
prohibited by the terms of this code. Further, under no circumstance shall the zoning board of 
appeals offer or accept any negotiation to grant a variance in exchange for any other land use 
alterations on the affected parcel or any other parcel of land. 

 
No nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures or buildings in other zoning districts shall 
be considered grounds for the authorization of the variance. 

 
 Staff Response:   The Lake McCoy Oaks Plat was recorded in September 1992, before the current 
Land Development Code was adopted and became effective.  The lot width, lot area, and setbacks and yard 
requirements  for the current LDC create conflicts with the plat established prior to the LDC’s adoption in 
1993. 
 
APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO SEVEN VARIANCE CRITERIA: 
  

B. Required findings. The zoning board of appeals shall not vary the requirements of any provision of 
this code unless the board makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on 
each of the following: 

 
1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 

variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  
 
Applicant Response: Garbage thrown on my property. Residents allowing pets to eliminate on my 
property. People walking through my property. 
 
Staff Response: The absence of a fence is allowing passerbys to devalue the property and overall 
neighborhood aesthetics. The placement of the house, and width of the lot make it impossible for 
the applicant to adhere to a 25 feet setback.  
 
    



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 3 

 

 

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 
 
Applicant’s Response: The request for a fence will not reduce cost to develop a site. 
 
Staff Response: The site is already developed. It is a subdivision parcel with a home built in 1993. 

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response: Congestion will not be increased, as this is a dead end. No thru traffic. 

 
Staff Response: A proposed fence will not increase congestion on a dead end street.  

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 
Applicant’s Response: Request will not diminish property values nor will it alter the character of 
the surrounding area.  
 
Staff Response:  The fence may prevent the previously discussed passerbys from leaving refuse on 
the property owner’s side lawn.  
 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 
intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of the code.  
 
Staff Response:  The proposed fence meets all other stipulations in the City’s Land Development 
Code.  

 
6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.  

 
Applicant’s Response: My request is not due to my actions. 

 
Staff Response:  The property owner was not responsible for building the home with a 13 feet side 
setback. 
 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 
the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  
 
Applicant’s Response: Will not create a safety hazard or a detriment to the public. Currently, the 
property opposite my home is surrounded by a six foot brick wall. 
 
Staff Response: The proposed variance will be adequate for accommodating a side yard fence. 
While this is a corner lot at the entrance of the subdivision, the Development Review Committee 
has determined that the fence will not create an issue with visibility and public safety.  
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 p.m.)  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 4 

 

 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 

Planning Commission has authority to take final action.  Approve, deny, or approve with conditions. 

Pursuant to the Land Development Code, Article XI - 11.05.00.A. - The Planning Commission has been 
established as a citizen board to review and approve variances.  Conditions may be established by the 
Planning Commission to reduce the impacts of the effects of the variance. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 5 

 

 

Nilsa Gonzalez 

301 McCoy Village Ct. 

0.12 +/- Acre 

Parcel ID #: 03-21-28-4671-00-010 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 6 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 7 

 

 

SITE PLAN 

 
 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 8 

 

 

Site Pictures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
NILSA GONZALEZ - VARIANCE 
PAGE 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Application 
  
SUBJECT:    VARIANCE - LEROME ANTIONE GRANGER - 2173 HUNLEY AVENUE 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II, SECTION 

7.01.07(A), TO ALLOW FOR A SWIMMING POOL TO ENCROACH 

WITHIN THE SIDE YARD SETBACK AT 2173 HUNLEY AVENUE. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:   Lerome Antione Granger 
 
LOCATION:   2173 Hunley Avenue 

 
PARCEL ID #:  20-21-28-2522-01-980 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Single Family Residential 
 
ZONING:   Mixed-EC (Employment Center) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residential 
 
TRACT SIZE:   0.16 +/- Acre 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A  

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\VARIANCES\2018 - Variances\VAR18-04 Lerome A. Granger - 2173 Hunley Avenue\4 Planning Com Hearing 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
LEROME GRANGER - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 2 
 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST SUMMARY:  Applicant is requesting a variance from Section 7.01.07(A) – 
Swimming and wading pools and hot tubs, spas, and appurtenances thereto, including, but not limited to, 
pool decks or outside shell if no deck exists, security fences, screen enclosures without permanent roofs, 
and pumps, shall not be located within a required front or side yard, within five feet of any rear property 
line, or within any easement.  
 

 Applicant Request - Allow swimming pool to encroach within required side setback. 
 

VARIANCE PROCESS:  Per Land Development Code Section 10.02.00, the Planning Commission must 
follow two steps to approve a variance: 
 
Step 1: Section 10.02.02.A, Limitations on Granting Variances. The Planning Commission “shall first 

determine whether the need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to 
the specific property involved.” This is known as a physical hardship. If the Planning 
Commission makes this determination, then it must take action on the seven variance criteria set 
forth in Section 10.02.02.B. 

 
Step 2: Section 10.02.02.B, Required Findings.  Once a “physical hardship” has been determined, the 

Planning Commission shall not vary from the requirements of any provision of the LDC unless 
it makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on the seven variance 
criteria.  

 
APPLICABLE CITY CODES:   
 

1. Section 7.01.07(A) – Swimming and wading pools and hot tubs, spas, and appurtenances thereto, 
including, but not limited to, pool decks or outside shell if no deck exists, security fences, screen 
enclosures without permanent roofs, and pumps, shall not be located within a required front or side 
yard, within five feet of any rear property line, or within any easement. Setbacks shall be measured 
from the edge of the deck or from the rim if it is an aboveground pool. 

Variance Hardship Determination (Step 1):  The first step of the variance determination process is to 
determine if a hardship occurs pursuant to Section 10.02.02.A, “whether the need for the proposed variance 
arises out of the physical surroundings, shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment 
conditions that are unique to the specific property involved.”  
 
 Staff’s Response:  The Emerson Park community was platted according to the requirements and 
standards set forth in the current Land Development Code.   Based on the shape of the lot, it exists as a 
rectangular lot with corners at 90 degree angles.    The lot is only 55-feet wide.  The house and the lot were 
in place at the time the property owner purchased the property.      
 
Seven Variance Criteria Findings (Step 2): If the Planning Commission accepts the hardship in Paragraph 
A. above, the second step is to make a finding on the seven criteria below.  The Planning Commission must 
make a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on each of the following seven criteria: 
 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 
variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  7.01.07(A) states that swimming pools "shall not be located 
within a required front or side yard, within five feet of any property line, or within any 
easement."  The shape of my home makes it seem as though I am proposing to place a 
swimming pool on the side of my home.  The pool will technically be placed in the rear 
yard, but it would extend beyond the wall of the home.  In addition, my home is 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
LEROME GRANGER - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 3 
 

surrounded by a privacy fence.  Please see Picture A-1.  The blue section shows the 
approved area for the pool which has been drawn over the concrete driveway, etc.  The 
red outline shows my proposed pool.  Please see Picture A-2 which displays a picture of 
the back yard.  A concrete driveway is located on the other side of the left side of the 
fence, which would make it impossible to build a pool according to the blue section 
outline in Picture A-1. 

 
Staff’s Response:  The rear yard is defined per Land Development Code Section 1.08.13 
as yard extending across the rear of a lot between the side lot lines and being a minimum 
horizontal distance between the rear lot line and the principal building or any projections 
thereof. And side yard is defined as a yard between the main building and the side line 
of the lot, and extending from the front lot line to the rear yard, and being the minimum 
horizontal distance between a side lot line and the side of the main buildings or any 
projections thereof.  Refer to Diagram A showing rear and side yard setbacks on this lot 
as defined by the Land Development Code.   

 
2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 

 
Applicant’s Response: There is no reduction in the cost of the pool by receiving the 
approval of the variance. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection.  

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response:  The proposed pool will be for our private use and will be 
enclosed with a privacy fence. 

 
Staff’s Response:  No objection. 

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 

Applicant’s Response: Swimming pools often increase property values by 
approximately 7%.  There are a few pools in the neighborhood.  In addition, the pool 
will be enclosed with a privacy fence. 

 
Staff’s Response:  City staff does not hold professional expertise to address property 
values.   

 
5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 

intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 

Applicant’s Response:  I believe that the proposed variance is in harmony with the 
general intent of the code in that the pool will be located towards the back of my home 
and it will be enclosed with a privacy fence. 

 
Staff Response:  Section 7.01.07(A) of the Land Development states that swimming 
pools shall not be located within a required side yard. It is the position of Staff that the 
proposed pool location does not meet the intent of the Code regarding swimming pools.  
Therefore, Staff does not support this variance request. 

 
 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
LEROME GRANGER - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 4 
 

6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.   
 

Applicant’s Response:  I have not changed the plot layout or the outside of the home to 
produce a special circumstance. 

 
Staff Response:  Lots within Emerson Park with 55' lot widths were not intended to have 
swimming pools due to spatial constraints posed by lot sizes.  A club house and 
community pool area is accessible to all residents of the community. 

 
7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 

the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  

 
Applicant’s Response:  The proposed pool will be built to Code and will be enclosed with a 
privacy fence. 
 
Staff Response:  No objection. 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
Planning Staff: has not received or identified sufficient substantially competent information to determine 
that a hardship exists. 
 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 
 
Planning Commission has authority to take final action.  Approve, deny, or approve with conditions. 
 
If Planning Commission approves the Variance, the following language is recommended: 
 
Approve a variance from Section 7.01.07(A), Land Development Code, to allow a swimming pool to 
encroach within the required side yard but shall no portion of the pool or its associated deck shall be placed 
closer than seventy (70’) feet from the front lot line, and a six foot high fence shall screen the pool from 
Hunley Avenue and Shackley Place and abutting lots. 
 
Planning Commission Role:  Planning Commission has the authority to approve, deny, or approve with 
conditions the requested variance.  
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
LEROME GRANGER - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 5 
 

Owner:   Little Brownie Properties Inc. c/o Peter Wood (President) 

Applicant:  Stephen Allen, P.E. 

Parcel I.D. No:    15-21-28-3960-00-010 

Location:  1350 Sheeler Avenue 

Total Acres:   21.15 +/- Acres   
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
LEROME GRANGER - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
LEROME GRANGER - VARIANCE REQUEST 
PAGE 7 
 

 

 

SITE PLAN 

 

 

 





























Rock Springs Estates Homeowners Association, Inc.
c/o Associa-Community Management Professionals, Inc.

4700 Millenia Blvd, Suite 515
Orlando, Florida 32839

ARCHITECTURAL CHANGE APPROVAL

March 5, 2018

P. Torres & D. Padilla
549 Keyhold Loop
Apopka, FL  32712

Property:  549 Keyhold Loop

Dear Homeowner:

Your request for an architectural change has been reviewed by the Architectural Control Committee.  The 
Committee finds the additional improvement not specifically prohibited by the restrictive covenants and is, 
therefore, Approved.

Fence- Install 

You are hereby advised that the approval of the Architectural Control Committee does not waive any provision 
of the restrictive covenants, any building code, and any ordinance, rule of law, or statute that may affect such 
improvement.  

Thank you for your cooperation in submitting these plans to the Architectural Control Committee for review.  If 
you have any questions or concerns, please contact our office in writing via mail or email at 
info@community-mgmt.com or by fax at 407-903-9234.

Sincerely,

Association Manager.
For the Architectural Control Committee

cc: Homeowner File



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance  Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 

    Site Pictures 
  
SUBJECT:    VARIANCE - PRISCILLA TORRES AND DANIEL PADILLA - 549 

KEYHOLD LOOP 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVE A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF ORDINANCES, 

PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE VII, SECTION 7.01.08 

(H) TO ALLOW A CORNER LOT FENCE CLOSER TO THE PROPERTY 

LINE THAN THE REQUIRED 25 FEET. 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:  Priscilla Torres/Daniel Padilla 

 
LOCATION:  549 Keyhold Loop  
 
LAND USE:  Residential Low Suburban (0-3.5 du/ac)  

 
ZONING:   R-1 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residence – one home site 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Single Family Residence – one home site 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicant requests a variance to allow a fence to be located 

approximately 17 feet from the property line. On a corner lot, such as 

this twenty five feet is required between the fence and the property 

line.  
 
TRACT SIZE:  0.33 +/- acre  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 2 

 

 

APPLICABLE CITY CODE:   
 
7.01.08 Fences (shall include walls) 
 
H. Fences may be permitted in any residential or office district; provided, that no fence or wall shall be 

erected or maintained within 25 feet from the property line on a corner intersection of street right-
of-way. Fences or walls erected beyond the front building line shall be limited to a maximum height 
of four feet. A fence or wall shall be limited to a maximum height of eight feet in the rear and side 
yards. 

 
LIMITATIONS GRANTING VARIANCES: 
 

A. Initial determination. The [Planning Commission] shall first determine whether the need for the 
proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical condition, or other 
physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property involved. If so, the 
[Planning Commission] shall make the following required findings based on the granting of the 
variance for that site alone. If, however, the condition is common to numerous sites so that requests 
for similar variances are likely to be received, the [Planning Commission] shall make the required 
findings based on the cumulative effect of granting the variance to all who may apply. 
 
Under no circumstances shall the [Planning Commission] grant a variance to permit a use not 
generally or by special exception permitted in this code or any use expressly or by implication 
prohibited by the terms of this code. Further, under no circumstance shall the [Planning 
Commission] offer or accept any negotiation to grant a variance in exchange for any other land use 
alterations on the affected parcel or any other parcel of land. 

 
No nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures or buildings in other zoning districts shall 
be considered grounds for the authorization of the variance. 
 
Staff Response:  Staff has not identified or received any substantially competent information to 
demonstrate that a need for the variance arises out of the physical surrounding, shape, topographical 
condition, or other physical or environmental conditions that are unique to this corner lot.  Corner 
lots similar to this occur throughout the City of Apopka. 

 
APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO SEVEN VARIANCE CRITERIA: 
  

B. Required findings. The [Planning Commission] shall not vary the requirements of any provision of 
this code unless the board makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on 
each of the following: 

 
1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 

variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  
 
Applicant Response: The measurements requested for the proposed variance of our fence 
installation will not create any practical difficulties or break any regulations. Any smaller 
measurements will give an awkward and unbalanced look to our new home and to the specified 
corner.  We have also requested a double door from Mossy Oak Fence (Mr. Terry Fox), on the 
corner side for easy entrance/exit of our lawnmower.  Mr. Fox has all the exact measurements in 
our application showing that it will be fair for the land that we acquired in our purchase, but also 
fair to the Rock Springs Estates community and to the City of Apopka.  I have photos to prove that 
there are no threats and no visibility issues for drivers turning to and from that corner.  The corner 
is also not in an intersection.  In the photos, the wooden stick with the orange flag next to the crape 
myrtles that we will be planting is the marking of where the fence will go. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 3 

 

 

Staff Response: Staff does not find a hardship for this variance application. 
    

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 
 

Applicant’s Response: This proposed variance is not based on the desire to reduce cost of 
development of this corner and property.  It will actually increase its development value which will 
add presence and attractiveness to the property, the lot, the street and the residential complex of 
Rock Springs Estates. 
 
Staff Response: The site is already developed. It is a subdivision parcel with a home built in 2017. 

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response: The proposed variance will definitely not increase congestion on the 
surrounding public streets for it will not affect or alter any visibility or safety issues for drivers and 
pedestrians.  The traffic pattern view for drivers driving to and from that corner will be clear and in 
compliance with all regulations. 

 
Staff Response: A proposed fence will not increase congestion on this circular street.  

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The proposed variance will most definitely not diminish property values, 
nor alter the essential character of the area surrounding site.  On the contrary, it will add value for it 
will make the property more complete and attractive. 
 
Staff Response: The proposed fence, in accordance with the home owner’s association guidelines, 
will not diminish property values.  
 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 
intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent 
of this code for the property has a larger lot than some of the other homes and it’s also a corner 
home.  The corner side is twice as large as the other side next to our neighbor.  For that reason, the 
fence location requested on the corner side needs to be wider to balance out the look of the fence 
and the property.  It will not alter the relevant subject area of the space.  The proposed variance is 
only on the wider side of the property which is the corner side.  The location of the fence will be in 
harmony with the spacing area.   
 
Staff Response: The proposed fence meets all other stipulations in the City’s Land Development 
Code.  
 
Land Development Code, Section 7.01.08 Fences (Shall include walls), B. No fence or wall shall 
be erected in any district within an area at any corner street intersection that will obstruct visibility 
at the site [sight] distance line. 

 
6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.  

 
Applicant’s Response: Special conditions & circumstances do not result from our actions as 
applicants.  One side of the property is 17 ½ feet and the corner side is 35 feet.  This is why the 
proposed variance requested for the fence needs to be wider on the corner side due to their difference 
in sizes (See property blueprint provided). 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 4 

 

 

 
Staff Response:  The property owner was not responsible for building the home in its current 
placement. 
 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 
the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The variance granted is the minimum variance requested to have a sturdy 
95 mph wind fence that not only meets the requirements of the county, but will allow reasonable 
use of the land in the community and in our property.  The measurements requested in our 
application are precise and fair.  It will add value and beauty to our property as well as to the 
surrounding homes around the neighborhood.  In addition, it will provide privacy to our new 
property but will not create any safety hazards or other detriments to the public. 
 
Staff Response: The proposed variance will be adequate for accommodating a side yard fence. 
While this is a corner lot at the entrance of the subdivision, the Development Review Committee 
has determined that the fence will not create an issue with visibility and public safety. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 p.m.)  
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 

Planning Commission has authority to take final action.  Approve, deny, or approve with conditions. 

As per the Land Development Code, Article XI - 11.05.00.A. - The Planning Commission has been 
established as a citizen board to review and approve variances.  Conditions may be established by the 
Planning Commission to reduce the impacts of the effects of the variance. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 5 

 

 

PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA 

549 KEYHOLD LOOP 

0.33 +/- Acre 

Parcel ID #: 33-20-28-7350-00-510 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 

Parcels 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 6 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 7 

 

 

Permit Survey  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 8 

 

 

Site Pictures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 9 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 11 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 12 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 14 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 15 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 16 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 17 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 18 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
PRISCILLA TORRES/DANIEL PADILLA. - VARIANCE 
PAGE 20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

X PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

 SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Variance   Aerial Map 

    Site Plan 
  
SUBJECT:    VARIANCE - CHRISTOPHER WRENN - 1686 SPINFISHER DRIVE 

    

REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF A VARIANCE OF THE APOPKA CODE OF 

ORDINANCES, PART III, LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE II, 

SECTION 2.02.18 (E) TO ALLOW A CORNER LOT HOUSE 27.9 FEET 

FROM THE PROPERTY LINE, 30 FEET IS REQUIRED.  
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNER:  D.R. Horton, Inc.  

 
LOCATION:  1686 Spinfisher Drive 
 
LAND USE:  Residential Estates (0-1 du/ac)  

 
ZONING:   PUD (Planned Unit Development) 
 
EXISTING USE:  Single Family Residence – one home site 
 
PROPOSED USE:  Single Family Residence – one home site 
 

VARIANCE REQUEST: The applicant requests a variance to allow a house, on a corner lot, to 

be located approximately 27.9 feet from the property line. On a corner 

lot, a thirty feet setback is required between the house and the 

property line, as set forth in the approved Master Plan.   
 
TRACT SIZE:  0.33 +/- acre  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHRIS WRENN - VARIANCE 
PAGE 2 
 

 

APPLICABLE CITY CODE:   
 
2.02.18 Planned Unit Development (PUD) 
 
E. Development Standards for Residential PUDs 
 
1a. “The PUD master plan shall identify the maximum residential density, type of development, 

maximum height limitations, minimum lot size and living area. Types of residential construction 
may be intermixed as  long as adopted residential densities are compatible and height limitations 
are not exceeded.” 

 
Ordinance 1435, approved by the City Council on June 5, 2002, grants Planned Unit Development zoning 

with an attached Master Plan. The Master Plan displays required building setbacks as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
LIMITATIONS GRANTING VARIANCES: 
 

A. Initial determination. The [Planning Commission] shall first determine whether the need for the 
proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, shape, topographical condition, or other 
physical or environmental conditions that are unique to the specific property involved. If so, the 
[Planning Commission] shall make the following required findings based on the granting of the 
variance for that site alone. If, however, the condition is common to numerous sites so that requests 
for similar variances are likely to be received, the [Planning Commission] shall make the required 
findings based on the cumulative effect of granting the variance to all who may apply. 
 
Under no circumstances shall the [Planning Commission] grant a variance to permit a use not 
generally or by special exception permitted in this code or any use expressly or by implication 
prohibited by the terms of this code. Further, under no circumstance shall the [Planning 
Commission] offer or accept any negotiation to grant a variance in exchange for any other land use 
alterations on the affected parcel or any other parcel of land. 

 
No nonconforming use of neighboring lands, structures or buildings in other zoning districts shall 
be considered grounds for the authorization of the variance. 
 
Staff Response:  The subject single family home encroaches 2.1 feet into the corner lot setback 
based on a special corner lot set back of 30 feet for the Rock Springs Ridge Planned Unit 
Development.  Typically, a perimeter buffer wall for a larger residential development is not placed 
in easement; it is placed in a tract.  Had this been the case, the tract would serve as side lot line, and 
the required setback would be ten feet, not 30.  In such case the residential home would be in 
compliance with the side yard setback. 

 
APPLICANT’S RESPONSE TO SEVEN VARIANCE CRITERIA: 
  

B. Required findings. The [Planning Commission] shall not vary the requirements of any provision of 
this code unless the board makes a positive finding, based on substantial competent evidence, on 
each of the following: 

Front  30 ft 

Side  10 ft 

Rear 35 ft 

Corner 30 ft 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHRIS WRENN - VARIANCE 
PAGE 3 
 

 

1. There are practical difficulties in carrying out the strict letter of the regulation [in] that the requested 
variance relates to a hardship due to characteristics of the land and not solely on the needs of the 
owner.  
 
Applicant Response: The variance request is for an existing home constructed by DR Horton on 
lot 1086 in Rock Springs Ridge. The home is currently under contract with a buyer who is amenable 
to the setback encroachment. The building plot plan, provided to the City of Apopka prior to 
building permit issuance, shows the side setback encroachment and was approved.  
 
Staff Response: The building permit and the foundation survey, for the subject property, depicts an 
encroachment on the corner lot setback. Staff missed the special PUD setback with a 30 foot corner 
lot setback versus a twenty-five foot corner setback, approving the building permit and foundation 
survey with that encroachment. This has led to the construction of the house and an “after-the-fact” 
variance application. 
    

2. The variance request is not based exclusively upon a desire to reduce the cost of developing the site. 
 

Applicant’s Response: This request is not based solely off of a desire to reduce cost. The home is 
completed and under contract with a potential resident. Development cost is not the reason for the 
setback encroachment.  
  
Staff Response: The site is already developed.  

 
3. The proposed variance will not substantially increase congestion on surrounding public streets. 

 
Applicant’s Response: The proposed variance has no impact on traffic congestion, as it is for a 
single family home on a single family lot. 

 
Staff Response: The allowance of variance for a single family home setback will not substantially 
increase congestion. 

 
4. The proposed variance will not substantially diminish property values in, nor alter the essential 

character of, the area surrounding the site.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The proposed variance will not diminish property values in or alter the 
character of the area. The 2’ side corner setback exposure is towards Jason Dwelley Parkway, and 
is mitigated for with the existing masonry wall. 
 
Staff Response:  Staff finds that the two feet encroachment, allowing 27.9 feet from the side of the 
house to the property line, will not diminish property values. Traditional residential zoning districts 
allow a twenty five corner setback.  
 

5. The effect of the proposed variance is in harmony with the general intent of this code and the specific 
intent of the relevant subject area(s) of the code.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The effect of the proposed setback variance is in harmony with the general 
intent of the code in that a significantly larger corner setback is provided, and that the setback 
encroachment is minimal in nature and could be considered di minimus impact to the existing 
required setback. 
 
Staff Response:  Staff agrees with the applicant’s response. 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHRIS WRENN - VARIANCE 
PAGE 4 
 

 

  
6. Special conditions and circumstances do not result from the actions of the applicant.  

 
Applicant’s Response: Approval of the variance request does not create special conditions or 
circumstances. 

 
Staff Response: City staff made the error of approving the building permit and foundation survey 
showing the corner lot setback encroachment. The applicant was not responsible for the 
circumstances of this variance application.   
 

7. That the variance granted is the minimum variance which will make possible the reasonable use of 
the land, building or structure. The proposed variance will not create safety hazards and other 
detriments to the public.  
 
Applicant’s Response: The proposed variance, if granted, will not create safety hazards or other 
detriments to the public, and will only allow for reasonable use of land and building.  
 
Staff Response: The proposed variance is sufficient for the use of this property, a single family 

house. 
Staff does not recognize any safety hazards with the proposed setback.   
 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 p.m.)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Planning Commission Role:   Based on the information provided by the applicant at the hearing for the 
variance requested, Planning Commission must first determine that sufficient substantially competent 
information indicates “whether a need for the proposed variance arises out of the physical surroundings, 
shape topographical conditions, or other physical or environment conditions that are unique to the specific 
property involved.”  If so, then the Planning Commission must find that substantially competent information 
occurs to accept each of the seven variance criteria. 

Staff Recommendation:  Approve a variance of 2.1 feet for the corner lot setback standard for property at 
1686 Spinfisher Drive. 
 
Planning Commission has authority to take final action.  Approve, deny, or approve with conditions. 

As per the Land Development Code, Article XI - 11.05.00.A. - The Planning Commission has been 
established as a citizen board to review and approve variances.  Conditions may be established by the 
Planning Commission to reduce the impacts of the effects of the variance. 
 
Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHRIS WRENN - VARIANCE 
PAGE 5 
 

 

Nilsa Gonzalez 

301 McCoy Village Ct. 

0.12 +/- Acre 

Parcel ID #: 03-21-28-4671-00-010 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHRIS WRENN - VARIANCE 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 
 
 
 

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHRIS WRENN - VARIANCE 
PAGE 7 
 

 

SITE PLAN 

 

 

 



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER:  Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Architectural Renderings 
  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – CARTER ELECTRIC – SOUTHWEST 

CORNER OF MARSHALL LAKE AND BRADSHAW ROADS 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR 

CARTER ELECTRIC LOCATED ON THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 

MARSHALL LAKE ROAD AND BRADSHAW ROAD 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: Carter Land Development, LLC c/o Douglas Carter 
 
ENGINEER:   Klima Weeks Civil Engineering, Inc., c/o Selby G. Weeks, P.E.  
 
LOCATION: South Bradshaw Road (Southwest corner of Marshall Lake Road and 

Bradshaw Road) 
 

PARCEL ID #:   09-21-28-0868-04-000 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Industrial 
 
ZONING: I-1 (Restricted Industrial) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE: Office (8,837 square feet) / Warehouse (4,132 8,837 square feet)  
 
TRACT SIZE:   13.02 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 12,969 square feet 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.03 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CARTER ELECTRIC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Industrial ROW/I-1 Marshall Lake Road/Vacant 

East (City) Industrial ROW/I-1 Bradshaw Road/Industrial Park/Retention Park/Vacant 

South (City) Industrial I-1 Industrial Park 

West (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  Carter Electric, Inc. is an electrical contractor specializing in commercial, 

industrial, and high voltage construction that is adding a location in the City of Apopka. The 12,969 square 

feet building will be used as an office and warehouse.  

       

PARKING:  A total of 71 parking spaces will be provided (50 required by code), three of which are reserved 

as a handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided by a single driveway curb cut on Marshall Lake Road located west 

of Bradshaw Road.   

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The height of the proposed building is 24’8", below the maximum allowable 

height of 35'.  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the City’s 

Development Design Guidelines. 

   
STORMWATER:   The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area, on the southern 
portion of the site.  The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development Code requirements. 
 

BUFFER/SCREENING/TREE PROGRAM:   As part of the development plan approval, a10-foot wide 

landscaping buffer and black vinyl coated chain link fence will screen the outdoor work area from adjacent 

properties.  The viburnum hedges shall be allowed to grow to and maintained at 6 feet in height.  The plan 

also shows sabal palms and viburnum hedges surrounding the dumpster enclosure area.  The plan also 

shows a mixture of elms, crepe myrtles and viburnum hedges within the 25' landscaping buffer along 

Marshall Lake Road. Live oaks are located in the western and eastern buffers and elms are placed in each 

parking landscape island.  Bald cypress trees surround the retention pond on the southernmost point of the 

project site's 10-foot wide landscape buffer.  The buffer includes a lustrum hedge along both roads and 

twelve oak trees within the buffer.  The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan for 

Carter Electric that complies with the requirements of the City’s Land Development Code. The planting 

materials and irrigation system design are consistent with the water-efficient landscape standards set forth 

in Ordinance No. 2069.  

 

 

 

  

Total inches on-site: 95 

Total inches removed 84 

Total inches retained: 11 

Total inches added: 174 

Total inches post development:                       195 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CARTER ELECTRIC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 6, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Carter Electric Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  Find the Carter Electric Final Development Plan consistent 

with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of Carter Electric 

Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CARTER ELECTRIC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Carter Land Development, LLC 

Applicant:                  Carter Land Development, LLC c/o Douglas Carter 

Engineer:  Klima Weeks Civil Engineering, Inc., c/o Selby G. Weeks, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    09-21-28-0868-04-000 
Location:  Marshall Lake Road and Bradshaw Road 
Acres:  13.02 acres +/- 

 
 

   

  VICINITY MAP 

 

  
 

 

 

Subject Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CARTER ELECTRIC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

ZONING MAP 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CARTER ELECTRIC - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

  
 
 

Subject Property 



1'-
11

"
9'-

5"

6'-6"

4'-8"

3'-
10

"
11

'-6
"

9'-4"
4'-8"

A6.1MCONCEPT ELEVATIONS
sheet number

project numberissue date drawn by approved by

1 03-16-18 PERMIT COMMENTS

THESE DOCUMENTS AND THEIR CONTENTS ARE THE PROPERTY OF BHM ARCHITECTURE, INC. AND ARE ISSUED ONLY FOR THE SPECIFIC PROJECT NOTED ON THESE
DRAWINGS. ANY REPRODUCTION AND/OR REDISTRIBUTION WITHOUT THE EXPRESSED WRITTEN CONSENT OF BHM ARCHITECTURE, INC. IS PROHIBITED BY LAW. TO THE
BEST OF THE ARCHITECT'S KNOWLEDGE, THESE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS COMPLY WITH THE APPLICABLE MINIMUM BUILDING CODES AND THE APPLICABLE FIRE
SAFETY STANDARDS.

BHM ARCHITECTURE, INC.
MAIL ONLY: 478 E ALTAMONTE DR., SUITE 108 PMB 264, ALTAMONTE SPRINGS, FL 32701-4622

PHONE: 407.333.2005 LICENSE # AAC000233

REVISION SCHEDULE
DATE DESCRIPTION

CMH CMH

WEST ELEVATION1

SOUTH ELEVATION4

EAST ELEVATION2

NORTH ELEVATION3

STONE SAMPLE- KURASTONE LEDGESTONE DESERT

0

W MW W . B H M . U S . C O

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

Scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

CARTER ELECTRIC, INC.
Apopka, Florida

2017.042
02-23-2018

PERMIT SET

Camala McCarter Hogue
AR-0009533

EXTERIOR FINISH SCHEDULE
DESCRIPTION COLOR/FINISHI.D.

PBR METAL SIDING PANEL P1 TAN

ALUMINUM STOREFRONT DOOR & FRAME

GENERAL NOTES:
1. 'SW' DENOTES SHERWIN WILLIAMS PAINT NUMBERS.

CLEAR ANODIZED

TEXTURED METAL SIDING PANEL P2 STONE

NICHIHA LEDGESTONE FIBER CEMENT PANEL P4 DESERT

PBR METAL ROOFING PANEL P3 COAL

STANDING SEAM METAL AWNINGS P7 COAL

STONE WATER TABLE BAND P12

HOLLOW METAL DOORS & FRAMES SW PAINT TO MATCH STONE

P10

P5METAL SCUPPERS, COLLECTION HEAD AND
DOWNSPOUTS

CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM

P9

STOREFRONT GLAZING CLEARP11

SILL CHISELED- GRAY

PRECAST CONCRETE WALL CAP P12 CAP CHISELED- GRAY

STUCCO-DUMPSTER P13 SHERWIN WILLIAMS MATCH P2

METAL GATES- DUMPSTER P14 SHERWIN WILLIAMS MATCH P1

SIGNAGE NOTES:

ALL SIGNAGE TO BE SUBMITTED UNDER
SEPARATE COVER FOR SIGN PERMIT.



















































 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Development Plan  Zoning Map 

    Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Architectural Rendings 
  
SUBJECT:    FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – CHURCH’S CHICKEN – 845 

SOUTH ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT 

PLAN FOR CHURCH’S CHICKEN TO BE LOCATED AT 845 

SOUTH ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER/APPLICANT: CHC-845 S ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL APOPKA FL LLC 
 
ENGINEER:   Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. c/o Jordan Draper, P.E.  
 
LOCATION: 845 South Orange Blossom Trail 

 
PARCEL ID #:   11-21-28-0206-00-070 
 
FUTURE LAND USE: Commercial 
 
ZONING: C-2 (General Commercial) 
 
EXISTING USE: Parking Lot 
 
PROPOSED USE: Restaurant with Drive-Thru Service 
 
TRACT SIZE:   1.07 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 1,850 square feet 
 
FLOOR AREA RATIO 0.0395 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
    



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHURCH'S CHICKEN - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Commercial C-2 Multi-tenant Shopping Center 

East (City) Commercial C-2 Multi-tenant Shopping Center 

South (City) Commercial ROW/C-1 U.S. Highway 441/ Multi-tenant Shopping Center 

West (City) Commercial C-2 Retail Establishment 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  This is a request to approve the Church's Chicken Final Development 

Plan that includes a building size of 1850 square feet and height of 21 feet. 

       

PARKING:  A total of 27 parking spaces will be provided (50 required by code), two of which are reserved 

as a handicapped parking space.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the restaurant is via private drive aisles of the Apopka Land Shopping Center that 

have multiple access points to U.S. 441, Sheeler Avenue, and S.R. 436. 

 

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS:  The height of the proposed building is 21 feet, well below the maximum 

allowable height of 35'.  Staff has found the proposed building elevations to be in accordance with the City’s 

Development Design Guidelines. 

   

STORMWATER:   The stormwater management is off-site and part of the master stormwater system that 

includes the Apopka Land Regional Shopping Center.  

 

BUFFER/SCREENING/LANDSCAPING/TREE PROGRAM:   As part of the development plan approval, 

red maple, eastern redbud and shrubs are located within the 5-foot wide landscaping buffer on the western 

perimeter of the project site.  10-foot wide landscape buffer on the southern perimeter adjacent to U.S. 

Highway 441 consist of crape myrtle, red maple trees and shrubs.   The plan also shows that a total of five 

existing oak trees are preserved.   

 

Total inches on-site: 198 

Total inches removed 78 

Total inches retained: 120 

Total inches added: 99 

Total inches post development:                       141 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 6, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

  



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHURCH'S CHICKEN - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

 

 

  
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the Church's Chicken Final Development 

Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  Find the Church's Chicken Final Development Plan consistent 

with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of Final 

Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHURCH'S CHICKEN - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 

 

 

Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner/Applicant:  CHC-845 S Orange Blossom Trail Apopka FL LLC 

Engineer:  Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. c/o Jordan Draper, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    11-21-28-0206-00-070 
Location:  845 South Orange Blossom Trail 
Acres:  1.07 acres +/- 

 
 

   

  VICINITY MAP 

 
  

 

Subject 

Property 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHURCH'S CHICKEN - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 

 

 

 

ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
CHURCH'S CHICKEN - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 6 

 

 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 

  
 
 

Subject Property 



















































 

CITY OF APOPKA 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
 

 
 

 PUBLIC HEARING  MEETING OF: May 8, 2018 

X SITE PLAN  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan/Final Development Plan  Aerial Map 

    Final Development Plan 

    Landscape Plan 

    Architectural Elevations 
  
SUBJECT:    PUD MASTER PLAN/FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN – RACETRAC – 1305 

WEST ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL 

    

REQUEST:  RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE PUD MASTER PLAN/FINAL 

DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR RACETRAC LOCATED ON THE 

NORTHWEST CORNER OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD AND US 441 
  
SUMMARY:  

 
OWNER:   Zellwood Properties, LLC 
 
APPLICANT/ENGINEER: Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Bryan Potts, P.E.  
 
LOCATION: Northwest corner of Hermit Smith Road and US 441 

 
PARCEL ID #:   36-20-27-0000-00-024, 01-21-27-0000-00-001 
 
LAND USE: Commercial  
 
ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development/Commercial) 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant Land 
 
PROPOSED USE: Gas Station with 18 fueling stations and 5,411 square foot convenience store 
 
TRACT SIZE:   2.53 +/- acres  
 
BUILDING SIZE: 5,411 square feet convenience store 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Nelson     Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
    

 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
RACETRAC HERMIT SMITH ROAD - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The applicant has submitted a PUD Master Plan/Final Development Plan 

for a RaceTrac gas station with 16 fueling stations and an associated 5,411 square foot convenience store. 

The subject property is located at the northeast corner of the intersection of Hermit Smith Road and US 

441. The subject property is approximately 2.53 acres in size and is zoned Planned Unit Development.  

     

PARKING:  A total of 35 parking spaces will be provided for the convenience store, and 16 parking spaces 

will be provided at the fueling station for a total of 55 parking spaces. Two parking spaces are reserved as 

a handicapped parking spaces.   

 

ACCESS:  Access to the site is provided via a full access point located on Hermit Smith Road, and a right 

in/right out on US 441. A 240-foot right turn lane leading into the site from US 441 will be constructed 

concurrent with site construction.   

 

TRANSPORTATION: Using ITE Trip Generation Rates, 9th Edition, the estimated project trip generation 

is 731 net new daily trips daily trips, 52 a.m. and 62 p.m. net new peak hour trips. The development is 

adding a 240-foot right deceleration lane at the access driveway on US 441.  

 

ARCHITECTURAL ELEVATIONS:  The architectural elevations provided for the convenience store 

propose a one story building with architectural design elements including awnings, windows with glazing, 

eifs, and a watermark and stone veneer provided around the perimeter of the building. The fueling station 

will be covered with an awning. Stone veneer that matches the stone veneer provided around the perimeter 

of the convenience store will be provided around the perimeter of the support columns of the fueling station. 

The building exhibits high quality architectural elements that are required in the Development Design 

Guidelines.   

   

STORMWATER:  Stormwater run-off and drainage will be accommodated onsite with a dry stormwater 

retention pond that is located behind the convenience store building.  

 

BUFFER/TREE PROGRAM:  The adjacent properties to the north and west have Agricultural zoning. Per 

the Land Development Code, a 6-foot block wall is required to be provided between commercial and 

agricultural uses. A wall is provided along the northern property boundary and approximately one-quarter 

of the western property. The wall is not provided along the entire western property line to allow for future 

cross-access between the subject property and the property to the west at such time that property develops. 

Landscaping including Live Oaks, Bald Cypress, Holly, and Bahia sod is provided in this location.  

 

The applicant has provided a detailed landscape and irrigation plan that complies with the requirements of 

the City’s Land Development Code. The planting materials and irrigation system design are consistent with 

the water-efficient, Florida-friendly landscape standards set forth in Ordinance No. 2069.  

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (County) Rural (1 D/U per 10 Acres) “County” A-1 Vacant 

East (City) Rural (1 D/U per 10 Acres) “County” A-1 (ZIP) Hermit Smith Rd/Vacant 

South (County) Not assigned  Not assigned US 441 

West (County) Rural (1 D/U per 10 Acres) “County” A-1 Vacant 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
RACETRAC HERMIT SMITH ROAD - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 3 

 

TREES: The applicant has agreed to a tree mitigation payment of $2,769.41 to mitigate existing trees that 

are proposed to be removed.  

 

Total inches on-site: 365 

Total inches removed 277 

Total inches retained: 88 

Total inches added: 81.5 

Total inches post development:                       169.5 

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
May 8, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

June 6, 2018 - City Council (1:30 pm)  

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of the RaceTrac Final Development Plan, 

subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Planning Commission Recommendation:  Find the RaceTrac Master Plan\Final Development Plan 

consistent with the Land Development Code and Comprehensive Plan, and recommend approval of the 

RaceTrac Hermit Smith Road Master Plan\Final Development Plan, subject to the findings of this staff 

report. 

 

Planning Commission Role:  The role of the Planning Commission for this development application is to 

advise the City Council to approve, deny, or approve with conditions based on consistency with the 

Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code. 
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
RACETRAC HERMIT SMITH ROAD - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 4 

 
Application:  Final Development Plan 

Owner:   Zellwood Properties, LLC 

Applicant/Engineer: Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Bryan Potts, P.E. 
Parcel I.D. No:    36-20-27-0000-00-024, 01-21-27-0000-00-001 
Location:  Hermit Smith Road and US 441 
Acres:  2.53 acres 

 
 
 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

SUBJECT PROPERTY 



PLANNING COMMISSION – MAY 8, 2018 
RACETRAC HERMIT SMITH ROAD - FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
PAGE 5 

 
 
 

AERIAL MAP 
 

 

 










	Top
	1 05-08-18 - PC - Minutes - 04-10-18 PC Minutes
	PC 04-10-18 Minutes.pdf

	1. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Bridle Path
	1 PZ Staff Report Bridle Path Rezoning Master Plan - ZON - PC 05 08 18.pdf
	2 Exb A Bridle Path Master Plan.pdf
	3 Exh B Trail System.pdf

	2. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan - Small Scale - FLUM - Fontaine
	Fontaine FLU PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	3. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Fontaine
	Fontaine RZ PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	4. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan Large Scale FLUM - Kent Greer
	1 Greer FLU PC - PS additions 5-8-18.pdf
	3 JPA 2nd Amend_Signed.pdf
	2 Future Land Use Element_Policy 18.pdf
	4 Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Character Districts.pdf

	5. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Laura Murphy (aka Equestrian Center)
	Equestrian Center PC RZ 5-8-2018.pdf

	6. 05-08-18 - PC - Public  Hearing - Comp Plan - Small Scale FLUM - Edmundson
	Edmondson FLU PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	7. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - Edmundson
	Edmundson RZ PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	8. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Comp Plan - Small Scale FLUM - SunTrust
	1 SunTrust FLU PC 5-8-2018 - PS additions.pdf

	9. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Change of Zoning - SunTrust
	SunTrust RZ PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	10. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Gonzalez
	Gonzalez Variance PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	11. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Hunley
	1 Lerome Granger- Variance -PC 05-8-18.pdf
	2 VAR18-04 Lerome A. Granger - 2173 Hunley Avenue - Application.pdf

	12. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Priscilla Torres &amp; Daniel Padilla
	2 Covenants 00143-0200 - P. Torres &amp;amp; D. Padilla - Rock Springs  Estates HOA  - Application - Fence - 2018.03.05.04.56.18.pdf
	1 Torres Variance PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	13. 05-08-18 - PC - Public Hearing - Variance - Wrenn
	Wrenn VAR PC 5-8-2018.pdf

	1. 05-08-18 - PC - SIte Plan - Final Development Plan - Carter Electric
	1 Carter Electric FDP PC 5.8.2018.pdf
	3 Architectural Renderings 3-16-18.pdf
	2 Carter Electric FDP - Full Plan Set.pdf

	2. 05-08-18 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - Church&apos;s Chicken
	1 Church&amp;#39;s Chicken FDP PC 5.8.2018.pdf
	2 11x17 Church&amp;#39;s Chicken  - Final Development Plan.pdf
	3 Church&amp;#39;s Chicken Colored Elevations.pdf

	3. 05-08-18 - PC - Site Plan - Final Development Plan - RaceTrac - NW Corner Hermit Smith Road &amp; US441
	1 Racetrac PC 05-08-18.pdf
	2 RaceTrac - site _ landscape plan.pdf
	3 Racetrac EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS.pdf

	Bottom

